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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Divisior^ FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH 03301

603-271-9544 1-800-852-3345 Eit 9544

Fax: 603-271-4332 TOD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

Decembers, 2021

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
.and the Honorable Council
State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health,
to amend an existing contract with Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care. Inc. (VC#333439-
P001), Little Rock, Arkansas, for the continued provision of program evaluation and data
collection, analysis, and reporting for the Alcohol and Other Drug Continuum of Care Service
System, by exercising a contract renewal option by increasing the price limitation by $808,200
from $801,700 to $1,609,900 and extending the completion date from June 30, 2022 to June 30.
2024. effective upon Governor and Council approval. 16.50% Federal Funds. 8.50% General
Funds and 75% Other Funds (Governor's Commission).

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on August 26. 2020. item
#14.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2023, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2024, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

05-95-92-920510-33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS; DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92058502

$298,201 $0 $298,201

2022 074-500685
Community

Grants
92058502

$303,074 $0 $303,074

2023 074-500585
Community

Grants
92058502

$0 $154,517 $154,517

2024 074-500585
Community

Grants
92058502

$0 $451,633 $451,633

Subtotal $601,275 $606,150 $1,207,425

Tht Departmtnt of Health and Human Services'Mission is to Join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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05-95-92.920510-33840000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND
ALCOHOL, CLINICAL SERVICES (66% Federal Funds 34% General Funds)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92057501

$99,400 $0 $99,400

2022 074-500585
Community
Grants

92057501
$101,025 $0 $101,025

2023 074-500585
Community
Grants

92057501
$0 $101,025 $101,025

2024 074-500585
Community

Grants
92057501

$0 $101,025 $101,025

Subtotal $200,425 $202,050 $402,475

Total $801,700 $808,200 $1,609,900

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to continue providing program evaluation and data
collection, analysis, and reporting for the Alcohol and Other Drug Continuum of Care Service
System in New Hampshire.

New Hampshire continues to face significant challenges concerning substance misuse.
Evaluating programs, translating research and data to practice, and disseminating findings helps
to ensure a consistent approach to improving outcomes for individuals and families in New
Hampshire who are in ne^ of services.

The Contractor will continue to provide ongoing evaluation of the Alcohol and Other Drug
Service system and programs by collecting, analyzing, and reporting on data that enables the
Department to make evidence-Informed decisions, while continuing to expand and improve upon
the system.

The Department will monitor services through regularly scheduled meetings and the
submission and review of monthly reports to ensure:

•  Evaluations assess program performance at all stages of development and are
implemented as designed or operating as intended.

•  Data collection, analysis, interpretation and reporting inform and aid in the
improvement of substance misuse policies, programs, and practices.

• Work products are delivered within the agreed upon timeframes.

• Approved changes to work plans and timelines are made within five (5) business
days of receiving approval from the Department.

As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Contract Provisions, Section 1,
Revisions to Form P-37. General Provisions, of the original agreement, the parties have the option
to extend the agreement for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery
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of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and Govemor and Council approval. The
Department is exercising its option to renew services for two (2) of the two (2) years available.

Should the Govemor and Council not authorize this request, the Department may be
unable to-address challenges that address fiscal responsibility and improve transparency and
accountability, which leads to quality improvement and builds capacity across the Alcohol and
Other Drug Continuum of Care Service System.

Area served; Statewide

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.959, FAIN #71083464

In the event that the Other Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1

This Amendment to the Program Evaluation and Data Services for the Alcohol and Other Drug (ADD)
Services System contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and
Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc. ("the
Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on August 26, 2020, (Item #14), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17 and Exhibit A, Revisions to
Standard Contract Provisions, Section 1., Subsection 1.1., the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify

the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2024

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$1,609,900.

3. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section 1, Statement of Work, Subsection 1.5., NH Youth
Risk Behavior Survey, Paragraph 1.5.1, Subparagraph 1.5.1.1, Part 1.5.1.1.3 to read:

1.5.1.1.3. Formatting survey in compliance with printer and online requirements;

4. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section 1, Statement of Work, Subsection 1.5., NH Youth
Risk Behavior Survey, Paragraph 1.5.1, Subparagraph 1.5.1.1, Part 1.5.1.1.4 to read:

1.5.1.1.4. Ensuring the final document is press-ready PDF; and

5. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section 1, Statement of Work, Subsection 1.5., NH Youth
Risk Behavior Survey, Paragraph 1.5.1, Subparagraph 1.5.1.1, Part 1.5.1.1.5 to read:

1.5.1.1.5. Ensuring survey modality is approved by the Department in writing no later than five (5)
weeks prior to survey administration.

6. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section 1, Statement of Work, Subsection 1.5., NH Youth
Risk Behavior Survey, Paragraph 1.5.1, Subparagraph 1.5.1.2, to read:

1.5.1.2. Printing, delivering and distributing approximately 45,000 surveys, in booklet form or
online participation links to more than 80 participating public high schools statewide,
formatted in accordance with the requirements of the CDC and the Department.

7. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section 1, Statement of Work, Subsection 1.5., NH Youth
Risk Behavior Survey, Paragraph 1.5.1, Subparagraph 1.5.1.4, to read:

1.5.1.4. Developing clean datasets to include a universal file and CDC sample file of coded
results utilizing coding rules approved by the Department;

8. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section 1, Statement of Work, Subsection 1.5., NH Youth
Risk Behavior Survey, Paragraph 1.5.1, Subparagraph 1.5.1.5, to read:

1.5.1.5. Providing a codebook for the clean datasets;

9. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section 1, Statement of Work, Subsection 1.5., NH Youth
Risk Behavior Survey, Paragraph 1.5.1, Subparagraph 1.5.1.6, to read:

1.5.1.6. Providing the data to the Department in clean data files in ASCII format, ensurirjg |^t any
RFP-2021-BDAS-01-PROGR-01-A01 Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc. Contractor Initials ^
A-S-1.0 Page 1 of 5 Date
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protected health Information (PHI) or SUD data included in the reports is disclosed in
accordance with the state rules, state and federal laws, including the requirements of 42
CFRPart2:and

10. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 3, to read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibit G-1 Budget SPY 2021 through Exhibit C-4 Amendment #1, Budgets SPY
2024.

.11. Modify Exhibit I, Health Insurance Portability Act Business Associate Agreement, by replacing it in
its entirety with Exhibit I - Amendment #1, Health Insurance Portability Act Business Associate
Agreement, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein.

, m
RFP-2021-BDAS-01-PROGR-01-A01 Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc. Contractor Initials

12/22/2021
A-S-1.0 Page 2 of 5 Date
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12. Add Exhibit C-3 Amendment #1. Budget SPY 2023, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

13. Add Exhibit C-4 Amendment #1, Budget SPY 2024, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

RFP-2021-BDAS-01-PROGR-01-A01 Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care. Inc. Contractor Initials
12/22/2021

A-S-1.0 Page 3 of 5 Date
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date \A/ritten below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

1/4/2022

Date

-DoeuSignad by:

S.
CODDM0040W4<

Name:><at3a s. fox

Title:

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

12/22/2021

Date

DocuSlgnad by;

Title: CEO

RFP-2021-BDAS-01-PROGR-01-A01 Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

A-S-1.0 Page 4 of 5
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

CDocuSign«d by;
Date Name: R^byn Guanno

Title: 1/7/2022

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

RFP-2021-BDAS-01-PROGR-01-A01 Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

A-S-1.0 Page 5 of 5
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ExNM C-3 Am»ndm*nt

BudpMSFYnzs

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Contractor Name; Arfcanaae Fourrdalion for Meiflcel Care

Project Tide: Program EvakiatiDn artd Data Seivlcce for the Alcohol and Other Drug (AOO) Services System

Budget Period: SFY 2023

LfcteKem

Total Program Cost Contractor Share / Uclch Funded by DHHS contract »t>ere

1. Totd Setary/Wages

2. EmclOYoe BereTils

X CotBtitams

gqtipmert:

Rerul

Repair am Maimananee

PurchaeerPepradallert

S. StppBes:

Educatioral

Phatirtacy

Medical

Oflice

OcctoancY

8, CtJTerS E;^en»e»

Telephone

Pottage

SuPecrioiiom

Audttand Legal

_Bowd_^£em^^
9. Software

10, MartietinolCommmicatiorB

11, Start Educalion and Tt^ring

12. SUxorcacts/AoreemerW

13, Other Isoecdic <

Mkact As A Percent of Diracl

Edttit C-3 Amananeis «1. Btdget SFY 2023
Artarsas Potnlation lor Medcal Care. Inc.

RFP-2021-e0AS41-PROGR-01-A0l

Page I ol 1

Contractor MtWs(i
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ExNb* C-4 Amendment H

Budget SFY 2024

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Contracter Name; Arkansae Foundation for Wadleal Care

Prefect TUe; Progrem Evaiuetlen and Data Servicm for the Alcohol end Other Drug (AGO) Services System

Budget Pertod: SFY 2024

Funded by 0HH3 contract share

Line Ham

_Tottl_Pro2am_COT^ Contractor SItare / hialch.

I, Total SatarytWeoes

2. Emctovee Benefas

3. Consthatts

Egtipmeft

Rental

Repair and l4aWenence

Purohase/Oecreciation

S. Suocdes:

Lab

Pharmacy

6. Travel

7. Qcemaney

8. Ctarera Emertses

Tdeahone

Postage

SiPeerlotions

Audit and Legal

Board Ewenees

9. Software

to. MarketirnVConvmricationB

H. Statf Educadon and Traireiq

12. Subcoitrecta/Aqreemerts

13. Other (spedfle datads mandatory):

Indirect Aa A Percerd oi Olreel

EkHSU C-4 Amendmert *1. Budget SFY 2024
Adarsas Fotndadon lor Medkal Care, Inc.

RFP-202t-eOAS-01-PROGR-0t-A01

Page 1 ol I

Coreractor Mtlab
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit i - Amendment #1

j>i

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY

AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement
("Agreement") agrees to comply with the "Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act,"
Public Law 104-191 and the "Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable
Health Information," 45 CFR Parts 160, 162, and 164 (HIPAA), provisions of the HITECH Act,
Title XIII. Subtitle D, Part 1 &2 of the "American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009," 42
use 17934, et sec., applicable to business associates, and also agrees to comply with the
"Confidentiality of Substance use Disorder Patient Records," 42 USC s. 290 dd-2, 42 CFR Part
2, (Part 2), as applicable, and as these laws may be amended from time to time.

(1) Definitions.

a. "Business Associate" shall mean the Contractor and its agents that receive, use, transmit, or
have access to protected health information (PHI) as defined in this Business Associate
Agreement ("BAA") and "Covered Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services.

b. The following terms have the same meaning as defined in HIPAA 45 CFR Parts 160, 162
and 164 and the HITECH Ac as they may be amended from time to time:

"Breach," "Business Associate," "Covered Entity," "Designated Record Set," "Data
Aggregation," "Designated Record Set," "Health Care Operations," HITECH Act,"
"Individual," "Privacy Rule," "Required by law," "Security Rule," and "Secretary."

c. Protected Health Information", (PHI) means protected health information defined in HIPAA
45 CFR 160.103, and includes any information or records relating to substance use Part 2
data If applicable, as defined below.

d. "Part 2 record," means any "Record" relating to a "Patient, and "Patient Identifying
Information,".as defined in 42 CFR Part 2.11 relating to substance use disorder Part 2
records.

e. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain, store, or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
the Scope of Work of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not
limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall protect all PHI as required by
HIPPA and 42 CFR Part 2, and not use, disclose, maintain, store, or transmit PHI in any
manner that would constitute a violation of HIPAA or 42 CFR Part 2.

Exhibit I - Amendment #1 Contractor Initials R-H-
Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement

Page 1 of 6 Date Q1/Q6/2Q22
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I - Amendment #1

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI, as applicable:

I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate:

II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph c, and d.
below;

III. According to the HIPAA minimum necessary standard,

•  IV. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of
Covered Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement and the BAA to
disclose PHI to any third party or subcontractor, prior to making any such disclosure, the
Business Associate must obtain a business associate agreement with the third party or
subcontractor, that complies with HIPAA and ensures that all requirements and restrictions
placed on the Business Associate as part of this BAA with the Covered Entity, are included
In Its business associate agreement with the third party or subcontractor.

d. The Business Associate shall not disclose any PHI in response to a
request or demand for disclosure, such as by a subpoena or court order, on the basis
that it is required by law, without first notifying Covered Entity so that Covered Entity can
determine how to best protect the PHI. If Covered Entity objects to the disclosure the
Business Associate agrees to refrain from disclosing the PHI, until such time as a court
orders the disclosure. If applicable, in any judicial proceeding, the Business Associate
shall resist any efforts to access any Part 2 records.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. Business Associate shall implement appropriate safeguards to prevent
unauthorized use or disclosure of PHI in accordance with HIPAA and Part 2, as

applicable.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately notify the Covered Entity at the following
email address, DHHSPrivacvOfficer@dhhs.nh.aov after the Business Associate has

determined that a known or suspected privacy or security incident or breach has
occurred potentially exposing or compromising PHI. This includes inadvertent or
accidental uses, disclosures, incidents or breaches of unsecured PHI.

c. In the event of a breach, the Business Associate shall comply with all applicable terms
of this BAA, and the information security requirements addendum of the Agreement.

d. The Business Associate agrees to perform a risk assessment, based on the
information available at the time, when it becomes aware of any known or suspected
privacy or information security incident or breach as described above and
communicate that assessment to the Covered Entity. The risk assessment shall
Include at a minimum, but not be limited to:

0 The nature and extent of the PHI Involved, including the types of identifiers and
the likelihood of re-identification;

Exhibit I - Amendment #1 Contractor Initials T?H-
Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement

Page 2 of 6 Date 01/06/2022
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\

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit i - Amendment #1

The unauthorized access or use of the protected health information or to
whom the disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired orvlewed; and
0  The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

e. The Business Associate shall complete a risk assessment report at the conclusion
of its incident or.breach investigation and provide the findings in writing to the
Covered Entity as soon as practicable after the conclusion of the investigation.

f. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the US Secretary of
Health and Human Services for purposes of determining the Business Associate's and
the Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule.

g. As stated in 2.c. above, Business Associate shall require any subcontractor or third
party that receives, uses, stores, or has access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in
writing to adhere to the same restrictions and conditions of the use and disclosure of
PHI contained herein, and comply with the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided
under Section 3 (m). In addition, the Business Associate shall require all third party
contractors or business associates of the Business Associate receiving PHI pursuant to
the Agreement to agree to the Business Associates' rights of enforcement and
indemnification from such third party or contractor for the purpose of use and disclosure
of protected health information.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the BAA and the Agreement.

i. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

k. Business Associate shall document any disclosures of PHI and information related to
any disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

I. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall makeavailable

Exhibit I - Amendment #1 Contractor Initials, R.H-
Health insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement

Page 3 of 6 Date 01/06/2022
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I - Amendment #1

to Covered Entity such Information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

m. In the event any Individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within ten (10)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to fonwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the BusinessAssociate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

n. Within thirty (30) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-ups of such PHI in any form or
platform.

0  If return or destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been
otherwise agreed to in the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to
extend the protections of the Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses
and disclosures of such PHI to those purposes that make the return or
destruction infeasible, for so long as ELaiesBAssociate maintains such PHI. If
Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the Business Associate
destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to Covered Entity
that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obliaations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in Its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI. A current version of the Covered Entity's Notice of Privacy
Practices is attached to the end of this BAA. Any changes in the Covered Entities'
website: httDs://www.dhhs.nh.qov/oos/hiDaa/publications.htm

b. ■ Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination of Agreement for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 9 of the General Provisions (P-37 of the Agreement, the

Exhibit I - Amendment #1 Contractorlnitials R.H"
Health Insurance Portabiiity Act
Business Associate Agreement

Page 4 of 6 Date 01/06/2022
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I - Amendment #1

Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered Entity's
knowledge of a material breach by Business Associate of the BAA. The Covered Entity
may either immediately terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business
Associate to cure the alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity.

(6) MiscellanQous

a. Definitions. Laws, and Reoulatorv References. All terms and regulations used herein, shall
refer to those lavire and regulations as amended from time to time. A reference in the .
Agreement, as amended to include this BAA to a Section in HIPAA or 42 CFR Part 2, means
the section as in effect or as amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the BAA, from time to time as is necessary for Covered Entity
and the Business Associate to comply with the changes in the requirements of
HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule, 42 CFR Part 2, and applicable federal and
state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity and Business Associate to comply with HIPAA and 42 CFR
Part 2.

e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this BAA or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this BAA I are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this BAA regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Business Associate
Agreement in section (3) I, the defense and indemnification provisions of section (3)
e and Paragraph 13 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the
termination of BAA...

Exhibil I - Amendment #1 Contractor Initials

Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement

Page 5 of 6 Date 01/06/2022
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I - Amendment #1

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this BAA.

Department of Health and Human Services Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care (AFMC)

by:

fit S-

Name of the Contractor

Q
Signature of Authorized Representative
Katja S. Fox

Name of Authorized Representative

Director

Title of Authorized Representative

1/7/2022

Date

SignatOre^ Xuthorized

Ray Hartley

resentative

Name of Authorized Representative

President & CEO
Title of Authorized Representative

January 6,2022

Date

Exhibil I - Amendment#!

Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement

Page 6 of 6

Contractor Initials

Date Q1/Q6/2Q22
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that ARKANSAS FOUNDATION

FOR MEDICAL CARE, INC. is a Arkansas Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on June 26,

2020. 1 further certify that ail fees and documents required by the Secretary of Stale's office have been received and is in good

standing as far as this ofTicc is concerned.

Business ID: 845208

Certificate Number: 0005462883

U.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be afTixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 2nd day of November A.D. 2021.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State
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%afmc
SM

Healthy People. Healthy Businesses.
Healthy Communities.

Certificate of Authority

I, AnnaMarie Sullivan. AFMC Corporate Secretary hereby certify that:

1. lama duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of AFMC (Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care).

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken by the Board of Directors, on January 5, 2022, at
which a quorum of the Directors were available.

VOTED: That Ray Hanley and/or Marilyn Strickland are duly authorized on behalf of AFMC
(Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care) to enter into contracts or agreements with the State

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to
execute any and all documents, agreements, and other instruments, and any amendments,
revisions, modifications thereto, which may in his/her judgement be desirable or necessary to

effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and
effect as of the date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached.

This authority remains valid for thirty (30 days for the date of the Certificate of Authority. I
further certify that is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate
as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and they
have full authority to bind the corporate. To the extent that there are any limits on the
authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New
Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

January 5, 2022 vnih
Date Signature of Elected Officer

AnnaMarie Sullivan

Printed Name

1020W.4TH ST., SUITE 400 | LITTLE ROCK.AR 72201 | 501-212-8(500 | FAX:50^375-0705
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ACORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/VYYY)

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer riqhts to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

BXS Insurance

8315 Cantrell Road. Suite 300
Little Rock AR 72227

License#; PC-1092395

CONTACT
NAME;

F,.>- 501-664-7705 wc noI: 501-664-8052
E-MAIL
AfiDRFSS;

tNSURERISI AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICH

INSURER A National Fire Insurance Co of Hartford 20478

INSURED ARKAFOU^K
Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc. .
1020 West 4th Street, Ste. 300
Little Rock AR 72201

INSURERS Accident Fund Ins Co of America 10166

INSURERC

INSURERD

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 1588008209 REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
TYPE OF INSURANCE

AbbL SUBR
POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
IMMmDIYYYYI

POLICY EXP
IMM/DD/YYYYI LIMITS

A X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

6 1 X 1 OCCUR

5094351024 8/lf2021 8/1/2022 EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000

CLAfMS4.1AC
DAMAGE TO KENrbO
PREMISES lEa occurrence) S 300.000

MED EXP (Any orte person) $10,000

PERSONAL & AOV INJURY $1,000,000

GErn. AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY Q 1 1 LOG
OTHER:

GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2.000.000

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGO $2,000,000

$

AUlOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT $

BODILY INJURY (Per person) $

OWNED

AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED

AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per accidem} S

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per irccidenll

S

S

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE $

AGGREGATE S

DEO RETENTIONS $

B WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILTrY y 1N
ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER'EXECUTIVE H
OFFICERftnlEMBeR EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH)
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS beiow

til A.

WCV60B471009 8/1/2021 8/1/2022
PER OTH-
STATUTE ER

E-L. EACH ACCIDENT S 500.000

E-L. DISEASE EA EMPLOYEE $500,000

E.L, DISEASE POLICY LIMIT $500,000

OES:RtPTION OF OPERATIONS 1 LOCATIONS 1 VEHICLES (ACORD 101. Additional Remarks Schadule, may be atUehed if more space Is required)

State of New Hampshire, DHHS
129 Pleasant Street
Concord NH 03301

I

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POUCY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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AFMC Mission Statement
Our mission is to promote and inspire innovation in health, wellness and technology
through partnerships in our communities.
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Financial Statements and Supplemental Information

June 30, 2021, 2020, and 2019

(With Independent Auditor's Report Thereon)
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Financial Statements

June 30, 2021,2020, and 2019

Address;

EIN:

Phone number:

Director:

Contact person:

Cost of audit:

P.O. Box 180001

Fort Smith, Arkansas 72918

23-7237381

(479) 573-7620

Ray Hanley, Chief Executive Officer

Jenna demons, Controller

Available upon request
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.
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(^LANDMARK
N^^certified public accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, inc.

Fort Smith, Arkansas

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc. (a
nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2021, 2020,
and 2019, and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the periods then ended, and the
related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
Organization's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our audit opinion.

Accounting. Consulting, In-ilghts. LandmarkCPA-vcom
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Board of Directors

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Organization as of June 30, 2021, 2020, and 2019, and the changes in its net
assets arid its cash flows for the periods then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.
The accompanying Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards and Expenditures of State Awards are
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), and are not a required part of the financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial staternents or to the financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 26,
2021 on our consideration of the Organization's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization's internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.

Certlfied'Publlc Accountants

Fort Smith, Arkansas

October 26, 2021
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Financial Statements
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Statements of Financial Position

June 30, 2021, 2020, and 2019

2021 2020 2019

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents S  7,213,063 $  7,512,795 S 2,808,168

Accounts receivable

Federal contracts 236,172 263,609 370,856

State contracts 3,791,562 3,976,646 3,059,648

COVlb contracts 3,794,640 - -

Private carrier contracts 1,214,880 1,017,729 797,970

.Interest receivable 3,582 4384 3,293

Prepaid expenses 898,401 709,409 667,413

Total Current Assets 17,152,300 13,484,572 7,707,348

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Furniture and equipment 3,823,174 3,671,688 . 3,252,303

Software 1,721,073 1,721,073 1,704,723

Building 6,839,262 6,725,437 6,598,328

Leasehold improvements 424,668 424,668 424,668

12,808,177 12,542,866 11,980,022

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 7,020,427 .  6,389,131 5,523,902

5,787,750 6,153,735 6,456,120

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS

Marketable securities 15,645,331 12,313,329 14,179,362

Real estate 1,060,000 1,060,000 1,060,000

16,705,331 13,373,329 15,239,362

TOTAL ASSETS $ 39,645,381 $ 33,011,636 S 29,402,830

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

4
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Statements of Financial Position

June 30, 2021, 2020, and 2019

2021 2020 2019

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Current portion of capital lease obligations

Deferred revenue

Note payable

Total Current Liabilities

$  1,350,441

2,605,816

3,630,230

7,586,487

$  991,470

1,779,367

108,098

15,758

3,630,230

6,524,923

612,721

1,723,176

250,624

28,452

2,614,973

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Capital lease obligations 108,098

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Designated for future severance pay

Undesignated

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

1,869,446 1,673,006 1,605,833

30,189,448 24,813,707 25,073,926

32,058,894 26,486,713 26,679,759

$ 39,645,381 $ 33,011,636 $ 29,402,830

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

5
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Statements of Activities

Years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, and nine month period ended June 30, 2019

2021 2020 2019

OPERATING REVENUES

Federal contracts

State contracts

COVIO contracts

Private carrier contracts

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES

Direct

Indirect

Non-reimbursable

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

OTHER INCOME (LOSS)

Interest and dividend income

(Loss) on disposal of property and equipment

Net realized and unrealized gains (losses)

on investments

Real estate investment income (loss), net

TOTAL OTHER INCOME (LOSS)

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

$  710,318

19,404,813

28,085,876

4,722,633

$  665,669

25,857,584

4,870,969

$  351,282

16,231,204

4,264,937

52,923,640 31,394,222 20,847,423

43,225,459

6,698,821

243,083

24,342,403

6,800,841

324,644

16,758,627

4,688,497

281,274

50,167,363 31,467,888 21,728,398

2,756,277 (73,666) (880,975)

156,554 313,456

(81)

318,272

(249)

2,543,601

115,749

(472,724)

39,969

(19,247)

(4,017)

2,815,904 (119,380) 294,759

5,572,181 (193,046) (586,216)

26,486,713 26,679,759 27,265,975

$ 32,058,894 $ 26,486,713 S 26,679,759

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

6



DocuSign Envelope ID: 197C19B1-2BBD-4E35-960F-8ADF3D01B06F

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

7

Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended June 30,2021 and 2020, and nine month period ended June 30,2019

2021 2020 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets without donor restrictions $  5,572,181 $  (193,046) $ (586,216)

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets

to net cash from operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 631,296 865,404 723,773

Loss on disposal of property and equipment - 81 249

Net realized and unrealized (gains) losses

on investments (2,543,601) 472,724 19,247

Changes in:

Accounts receivable (3,779,270) (1,029,510) (102,670)

Interest receivable 802 (1,091) 20,655

Prepaid expenses (188,992) (41,996) 680,727

Accounts payable 358,971 206,249 (23,421)

Accrued expenses 826,449 56,191 (266,532)

Deferred revenue (15,758) (12,694) (2,212)

Total adjustments (4,710,103) 515,358 1,049,816

Net Cash From Operating Activities 862,078 322,312 463,600

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property and equipment (265,311) (390,600) (127,272)

Purchase of marketable securities (2,200,516) (965,909) (1,151,344)

Proceeds from sale/maturity of

marketable securities 1,412,115 2,359,218 906,873

Net Cash From (Used For) Investing Activities (1,053,712) 1,002,709 (371,743)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net change in note payable - 3,630,230 -

Principal payments on capital lease obligations (108,098) (250,624) (180,088)

Net Cash From (Used For) Financing Activities (108,098) 3,379,606 (180,088)

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (299,732) 4,704,627 (88,231)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,

BEGINNING OF YEAR 7,512,795 2,808,168 2,896,399

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $  7,213,063 $  7,512,795 S 2,808,168
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2021, 2020, and 2019

NOTEl: NATURE OF BUSINESS

The Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc. (the Organization) operates primarily in the State of
Arkansas to improve health and health care by providing education, outreach, data analysis,
information technology, medical case utilization and review, and marketing/communications services
for Medicaid beneficiaries and health care providers in all settings. During the year ending June 30,

2021, the Organization also expanded services to mobilize a contact tracing team under a sub
contract agreement with the Arkansas Department of Health and hosted COVID testing and vaccine
events, provided staff augmentation for hospitals and university health centers, and expanded call-
center services to provide vaccine support services.

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGINIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting

The Organization's policy is to prepare its financial statements on the accrual basis of accounting in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Revenues
are recognized, net of sales tax, in the period in which they are earned. Expenses are recognized in
the period in which they are incurred.

Change in Fiscal Year End

The Board of Directors of the Organization voted to change the fiscal year end of the Organization
from September 30 to June 30 to be consistent with the year ends of the associated state government
contracts. This change was effective on October 1, 2018. Accordingly, the financial statements
presented as of June 30, 2019, reflect a nine month period from October 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019.

Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the Statements of Cash Flows, the Organization considers cash equivalents to be all
short-term, highly liquid investments that are both readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
are so near their maturity that they present insignificant risk of changes in value because of changes
in interest rates. At June 30, 2021, 2020, and 2019, the Organization had cash equivalents of
approximately $664,000, $1,298,000 and $106,000, respectively.

Accounts Receivable

The Organization considers accounts receivable to be fully collectible. Accordingly, no allowance for
doubtful accounts is deemed necessary. If accounts become uncollectible, they will be charged to
operations when that determination is made. Determination of uncollectibillty is made by
management based on knowledge of individual accounts and consideration of such factors as current
economic conditions. Credit extended is generally uncollateralized. Past-due status is based on
contractual terms. Past-due accounts are not charged interest.
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2021, 2020, and 2019 .

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is accounted for at cost or, if donated, at the approximate fair value at the
date of donation. Depreciation of property and equipment is computed on the straight-line method
over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which range from three to thirty-nine years. For the

years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the nine month period ended June 30, 2019, depreciation

expense was $618,008, $794,644, and $637,548, respectively.

All acquisitions of nonexpendable, tangible personal property having a useful life of more than one
year and an acquisition cost which equals or exceeds $5,000 are capitalized.

At June 30, 2021, 2020, and 2019, the Organization had fully depreciated assets still in service with an

original cost of approximately $4,634,000, $2,890,000, and $2,552,000, respectively.

Amortization

The Organization follows the policy of amortizing computer software costs over various periods up to

three years. For the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the nine month period ended June 30,

2019, amortization expense was $13,288, $70,760, and $86,225, respectively.

Long-Llved Assets

In accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Codification Topic Property, Plant

and Equipment, Section Subsequent Measurement, management evaluates long-lived assets and

certain identifiable intangibles held and used by the Organization for impairment whenever events or

changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.

During the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the nine month period ended 2019, no amounts

were written off as impaired.

Investments

The Organization has portfolio investments in marketable equity and debt securities. Management

determines the appropriate classification of the securities at the time they are acquired and evaluates the

appropriateness of such classifications at each statement of financial position date. The classification of

those securities and the related accounting policies are as follows:

Available-for-sale securities

Available-for-sale securities consist of marketable equity and debt securities not classified as

trading or held-to-maturity. Available-for-sale securities are stated at fair value, and unrealized

holding gains and losses are reported on the Statement of Activities. The fair value of the

investments in equity and debt securities is based upon public market rates. See Note 5 for

discussion of fair value measurements. Realized gains and losses, including losses from

declines in value of specific securities determined by management to other-than-temporary,

are included in income. Realized gains and losses are determined by specific identification for

each security sold. Dividends are recorded on the ex-dividend date.
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2021, 2020, and 2019

Non-Exchange Revenue

The majority of the Organization's revenue is derived from non-exchange contracts and grants which are
conditioned upon certain performance requirements and/or the incurrence of allowable qualifying
expenses. Amounts received are recognized as revenue when the Organization has incurred expenditures
in compliance with specific contract or grant provisions. Amounts received prior to incurring qualifying
expenditures are reported as deferred revenue in the Statements of Financial Position. The Organization
has various cost reimbursable grants that have not been recognized at June 30, 2021 because the
qualifying expenditures have not yet been incurred.

Exchange Revenue

The Organization provides security risk analysis to private carriers. These are short-term fee for service
contracts. Performance obligations are satisfied at a point in time, and revenue is recognized when the
services are provided to customers and additional services are no longer required. The Organization
determines the transaction price based on standard charges for the services provided. These program

service fee revenues are included as part of "Private carrier contracts" on the Statements of Activities.

Federal and State Contracts

Federal contracts on the Statements of Activities include only contracts that are directly awarded and

received from the federal government. State contracts on the Statements of Activities include contracts
that are direct awards from the state or are federal awards passed through the state.

Compensated Absences

The Organization accrues the obligation for employee rights to receive compensation for future
absences, such as vacation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the

date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the

reporting period. In these financial statements, the provision for self-insured employee health claims
involved extensive reliance on management's estimates (See Note 9). Actual results could differ from

those estimates.

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue consists of advance payments of consulting and contract services.
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2021, 2020, and 2019

Income Tax and Uncertain Tax Positions

The Organization qualifies as an organization exempt from income taxes under section 501(c){3} of

the Internal Revenue Code and a similar state statute, and is not subject to tax at the entity level for

federal and state income tax purposes. The Organization accounts for uncertain tax positions in

accordance with the provisions of FASB Codification Topic Income Taxes. FASB Codification Topic

Income Taxes clarifies the accounting for uncertainty In income taxes and requires the Organization to

recognize in their financial statements the impact of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a

tax return, if that position is more likely than not to be sustained under audit, based on the technical

merits of the position. Management has assessed the tax positions of the Organization and
determined that no positions exist that require adjustment or disclosure under the provisions of FASB

Codification Topic Income Taxes.

The Organization files informational "Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax" (Form 990) in

the U.S. federal jurisdiction.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The Organization allocates its expenses on a functional basis among its various programs and support

services. Expenses that can be identified with a specific program and support service are allocated

directly according to their natural expenditure classification. Allocable expenses that are common to

several functions are allocated based on units of time expended. Indirect expenses are allocated to

the programs based on allowable rates.

Advertising

The Organization follows the policy of charging advertising to expense as incurred. For the years

ended June 30, 2021, 2020, and the nine month period ended June 30, 2019, advertising expense was

approximately $51,000, $68,000, and $77,000, respectively.

Upcoming Accounting Pronouncement

In February 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2016-02, Leases. The ASU

requires all leases with lease terms more than 12 months to be capitalized as a right-of-use asset and

lease liability on the Statement of Financial Position at the date of lease commencement. Leases will

be classified as either finance leases or operating leases. This distinction will be relevant for the

pattern of expense recognition in the Statement of Activities. This ASU will be effective for the

Organization for the year ending June 30, 2023. The Organization is currently in the process of

evaluating the impact of adoption of this ASU on the financial statements.

NOTE 3: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH RISK OF ACCOUNTING LOSS

The Organization uses financial institutions in which it maintains cash balances, which at times may

exceed federally insured limits or are uncollateralized. The Organization has not experienced any

losses in such accounts, and management believes it is not exposed to significant credit risk related to

cash. At June 30, 2021, the Organization had an uninsured cash equivalents balance of approximately

$414,000.
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2021, 2020, and 2019

At June 30, 2021, the Organization had investments in marketable securities valued at $15,645,331,
which are subject to market risk.

NOTE 4: NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

During the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the nine month period ended June 30, 2019, the
Organization had capital expenditures for'equipment and other capital Items as follows:

2021 2020 2019

Purchase price $ 265,311 $ 563,100 $ 127,272
Amount financed with capital

lease obligations

Accounts payable. - (172,500)

Cash paid (265,311) (390,600) (127,272)

During the.year ended June 30, 2020, and the nine month period ended June 30, 2019, assets with an
original cost of $256 and $2,144, respectively, were scrapped. The accumulated depreciation on these
assets at the time of disposal was $175 and $1,895, respectively. There were no assets scrapped
during the year ended June 30, 2021.

NOTE 5: INVESTMENTS IN AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES

As stated in Note 2, investments in marketable equity securities with readily determinable fair values

and all investments in debt securities are carried at fair value. The cost, fair value, and unrealized

appreciation of these investments for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the nine months

ended June 30, 2019, are summarized as follows:

2021 2020 2019

Cost of investments

Equity securities S 9,901,982 $ 8,682,635 $ 9,945,646

Debt securities 503,321 508,685 61

$ 10,405,303 $ 9,191,320 ' $ 9,945,707

Fair value of investments

Equity securities $ 15,130,071 $ 11,802,755 $ 14,179,360

Debt securities 515,260 510,574 102

$ 15,645,331 $ 12,313,329 $ 14,179,462

Unrealized appreciation

on investments $ 5,240,028 $ 3,122,009 $ 4,233,755
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2021, 2020, and 2019

The following schedule summarizes the investment return and its classification in the Statements of
Activities for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the nine months period ended June 30,
2019.

2021 2020 2019

Interest and dividend income

Net unrealized gains (losses)

Net realized gains (losses)

$ 156,554 $ 313,456 $ 318,272

2,118,019 (1,111,746) (24,325)

425,582 639,022 5,078

$ 2,700,155 $ (159,268) $ 299,025

NOTE 6: FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

FASB Codification Topic Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures establishes a framework for measuring
fair value. That framework provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs

(Level 3). If the inputs used to measure the investments fall within different levels of the hierarchy, the
categorization is based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement of the
investment.

Investments recorded in the accompanying Statements of Financial Position based on the inputs to

valuation techniques are as follows:

Level 1 - These are investments where values are based on unadjusted quoted prices for

identical assets in an active market that the Organization has the ability to access. These

investments are comprised of equity securities.

Level 2 - These are investments where values are based on quoted prices In markets that are

not active or model inputs that are observable either directly or indirectly for substantially

the full term of the investments. These investments are comprised of debt securities.

Level 3 - These are investments where values are based on prices or valuation techniques

that require inputs that are both unobservable and significant to the overall fair value
measurement. These inputs reflect assumptions of management about assumptions market

participants would use in pricing the investments.

The asset's or liability's fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the
lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

Valuation techniques used need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of
unobservable Inputs.
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2021, 2020, and 2019

Following is 3 description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value.
There have been no changes in the methodologies used at June 30, 2021, 2020, and 2019.

Equity securities: Valued at closing price reported on the active market on which the security is
traded.

Debt securities: Valued at the present value of the corporate bond's coupon payments and the
repayment of the principal.

The preceding methods described may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of
net realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, although the Organization
believes its valuation methods are appropriate and consistent vyith other organizations, the use of
different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments
could result in a different fair value measurement at the reporting date.

The following table presents the Organization's hierarchy for the investments measured at fair value
on a recurring basis as of June 30, 2021,2020, and 2019.

Equity securities

Debt securties

Equity securities

Debt securties

Equity securities

Debt securties

June 30. 2021

(Level 1) (Level 2)

$  15,130,071 $

515,260

June 30. 2020

(Level 1) (Level 2)

$  11,802,755 $

510,574

June 30. 2019

(Level 1) (Level 2)

S  14,179,360 s

102

(Level 3)

(Level 3)

(Level 3)

NOTE 7: LINE OF CREDIT AND NOTE PAYABLE

The Organization maintains a $500,000 revolving line of credit with a bank; The interest rate was
3.75% at June 30, 2021, 4.00% at June 30, 2020, and 5.25% at June 30, 2019. The line of credit is
secured by the Organization's federal, state, and private carrier contracts, with interest due monthly.
The line of credit matures in December 2021. As of June 30, 2021, there were no outstanding
advances on the line of credit.
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2021,2020, and 2019

In April 2020, the Organization qualified for and received a loan pursuant to the Paycheck Protection
Program, a program implemented by the U.S. Small Business Administration (SBA) under the
Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security CARES Act, from a qualified lender (the PPP Lender),
for an aggregate principal amount of $3,630,230 (the "PPP Loan"). The PPP Loan is to be used to pay
up to 24 weeks of payroll costs including benefits, interest on mortgages, rent, and utilities. The
principal amount of the PPP Loan is subject to forgiveness to the extent the proceeds are used to pay
these covered expenses.

To the extent that all or part of the PPP Loan is not forgiven, the Organization will be required to pay
interest at a rate of 1.0% per annum. Payments of principal, interact, and any other fees that are not
forgiven will be required through the maturity date in April 2022 and will commence on the date the
SBA remits the forgiveness amount to the PPP Lender. The terms of the PPP Loan provide for
customary events of default including, among other things, payment defaults, breach of

. representations and warranties, and insolvency events. The PPP Loan may be accelerated upon the
occurrence of an event of default. These funds have been accounted for using the FASB Accounting

Standards Codification 470 debt model.

In September 2021, the Organization received confirmation that the PPP Loan had been forgiven in
full along with any accrued interest.

NOTES: LEASING ARRANGEMENTS

Capital Lease

Assets acquired under capital leases have been capitalized and are included in furniture and
equipment on the Statements of Financial Position as of June 30, 2021, 2020, and 2019 at a cost of
$729,746, with accumulated depreciation of $729,746, $658,471, and $415,222, respectively.

Capital lease obligations consist of the following:

2021 2020 2019

IT Server capital lease,

collateralized by equipment, due in

monthly installments of $21,885,

including interest at 4.899%

matured November 30,2020 $ - $ 108,098 $ 358,722

Less current portion ^ (108,098) (250,624)
$  ■ $ - $ 108,098
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2021, 2020, and 2019

Operating Leases

Lessee

The Organization leases office space and various pieces of office equipment under long-term
operating lease agreements. The total rental expense for operating leases for the years ended June
30, 2021 and 2020, and the nine month period ended June 30, 2019 was approximately $73,000,
$127,000, and $109,000, respectively.

The following is a schedule of future minimum rental payments required under the above operating
leases:

Year ending June 30,2022 $ 66;853

Lessor

A portion of the Organization's building is being used for the Organization's operations and the
remainder is being leased out under operating lease agreements. Rent income was approximately
$202,000, $214,000, and $157,000 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the nine month
period ended June 30, 2019, respectively.

Maintenance expense related to this income was approximately $86,000, $174,000 and $161,000,
respectively, for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the nine-month period ended June 30,
2019, .which is netted against the rent income in the Statements of Activities as "Real estate
investment income (loss), net".

The following is a schedule of future minimum rental income under the above operating leases:

Year ending June 30,2022 $ 159,512

NOTE 9: EMPLOYEE HEALTH CLAIMS

In January 2011, the Organization established a self-insured health plan. Substantially all of the
Organization's employees and their dependents are eligible to participate in the Organization's
employee health insurance plan. The Organization is self-insured for health claims of participating
employees and dependents up to an annual aggregate amount of approximately $2,772,000 at June
30, 2021. Commercial stop-loss Insurance coverage is purchased for claims in excess of the aggregate
annual amount.

A provision is accrued for self-insured employee health claims including both claims reported and
claims incurred but not yet reported. The accrual is estimated based on consideration of prior claims
experience, recently settled claims, frequency of claims, and other economic and social factors. It is
reasonably possible that the Organization's estimate will change by a material amount in the near
term. Total expense for claims for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the nine month
period ended June 30, 2019, was $2,737,508, $2,310,577, and $1,542,446, respectively.
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2021, 2020, and 2019

NOTE 10: EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

The Organization has a 401(k) profit sharing plan (the Plan). All employees who meet the age
eligibility requirement, and who are not leased employees or nonresident aliens, are eligible to
participate in the Plan. The Organization's funding policy for the Plan is to make safe harbor
contributions based upon 3% of each participant's compensation. The Organization also has the

ability to make a discretionary profit sharing contribution to participants. Through December 31,
2017, the Organization elected to make a discretionary profit sharing contribution of 1% of each
participant's compensation. Effective January 1, 2018, the Organization elected to cease the
discretionary profit sharing contribution until elected otherwise. Employees are immediately vested in
the safe harbor contribution. Employees become fully vested in discretionary profit sharing

contributions after five years of service. For the years, ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the nine
month period ended June 30, 2019, the Organization made plan contributions of approximately
$588,000, $529,000, and $359,000, respectively. The Board of Directors has established a severance

^  ' pay program. See Note 12 for further details.

NOTE 11: CONCENTRATIONS, CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

A material part of the Organization's operations is derived from federal and state contracts. State
contracts are renegotiated annually. For the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the nine month
period ended June 30, 2019, these contracts represented 38%, 84%, and 80% of the Organization's
total operating revenues, respectively. The loss of these contracts would have an adverse effect on
the Organization's ability to continue in existence.

Support funded by these contracts is recognized as the Organization performs the services or incurs
outlays eligible for reimbursement under the contract agreements. The services and outlays are
subject to audit and acceptance by the awarding agency or their representatives and, as a result of
such audit, adjustments could be required.

During the year ending June 30, 2021 the Organization also expanded services to include COVID
contract services (See Note 1). These contracts represented 53% of the Organization's total operating

revenues for the year ended June 30, 2021. These services are expected to be temporary, however,

the Organization is prepared to adjust recourses as these contracts close out and therefore does not
believe that these contracts ending will have an adverse effect on the Organization's ability to

continue.

The Organization grants unsecured credit for services provided based on these contracts and other

privately funded services. At June 30, 2021, 2020, and 2019, the Organization had extended credit
(accounts receivable) of approximately $9,037,000, $5,258,000, and $4,228,000, respectively.

The Organization's employees maintain credit cards that are guaranteed by the Organization. At June

30, 2021, the balance on these cards was approximately $48,000, and the available credit line was

approximately $329,000. The Organization monitors the employees' payments of these balances and
may withhold payment from the employees' payroll checks.
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2021, 2020, and 2019

The Organization is involved in various litigation as of June 30, 2021, arising in the ordinary course of
business. The ultimate outcome of such litigation is uncertain. Hoiwever, management and legal
counsel are of the opinion that the resulting outcome of such litigation would have a minimal adverse
economic impact on the Organization.

NOTE 12: DESIGNATED NET ASSETS

The Board of Directors has established a severance pay program for the benefit of all employees. This
program Is intended to compensate employees in the event the federal and/or state contracts are
eliminated, either through termination or nonrenewal. For the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020,
and the nine month period ended June 30, 2019, employees who would be terminated for this reason
are entitled to one week's severance pay for each year of service up to 12 years. Any expense that
would be incurred under this plan will be recognized when it becomes likely that payment of
severance pay will be made. At June 30, 2021, 2020, and 2019, the balance of this severance pay is
included in "Designated for Future Severance Pay" on the Statements of Financial Position.

note 13: LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Organization regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other
contractual commitments, while also striving to maximize the investment of its available funds. The
Organization has various sources of liquidity at its disposal, including cash and cash equivalents,
marketable debt and equity securities {see Note 5), and a line of credit (see Note 7).

The Organization monitors cash weekly to meet general expenditures and transfers funds from its
investment account or draw on the line of credit as necessary for short-term cash flow delays.

The following table reflects the Organization's financial assets as of June 30, 2021, 2020, and 2019, to
meet general expenditures within one year of the Statement of Financial Position date.

2021 2020 2019

Cash and cash equivalents $ 7,213,063 $ 7,512,795 $ 2,808,168
Accounts and interest

receivable 9,040,836 5,262,368 4,231,767
Investments 15,645,331 12,313,329 14,179,362
Less: Designated for future severance pay 1,869,446 1,673,006 1,605,833

$ 33,768,676 $ 26,761,498 $ 22,825,130
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.
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NOTE 14: FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

During the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the nine month period ended June 30, 2019,
functional expenses were incurred as follows:

June 30, 2021

General and

Program Administrative

Services Costs Total

Salaries $ 16,581,050 $ 746,451 $ 17,327,501

Leave 2,381,665 107,219 2,488,884

Fringe 5,440,372 244,917 5,685,289

Physician advisors 33,342 - 33,342

Consultants 15,047,641 309,474 15,357,115

Travel 115,612 19,219 134,831

Other costs 8,818,961 321,440 9,140,401

$ 48,418,643 $ 1,748,720 $ 50,167,363

June 30, 2020

General and

Program Administrative

Services Costs Total

Salaries $ 14,363,154 $ 854,282 S 15,217,436

Leave 2,046,138 121,699 2,167,837

Fringe 4,444,854 264,368 4,709,222

Physician advisors 87,414 - 87,414

Consultants 3,329,752 138,003 3,467,755

Travel 383,550 23,568 407,118

Other costs 5,008,118 402,988 5,411,106

$ 29,662,980 S 1,804,908 $ 31,467,888
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June 30, 2019

General and

Program Administrative

Services Costs Total

Salaries $ 10,071,550 $  614,950 $ 10,686,500

Leave 1,443,393 88,131 1,531,524

Fringe 3,038,085 185,500 3,223,585

Physician advisors 142,501 - 142,501

Consultants 1,937,864 110,740 2,048,604

Travel 341,901 24,943 366,844

Other costs 3,433,001 295,839 3,728,840

S  20,408,295 $  1,320,103 $ 21,728,398

NOTE 15: RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The C0\/ID-19 pandemic remains a rapidly evolving situation. As of the date of the Independent
Auditor's Report, the COVID-19 pandemic has had an adverse impact on both domestic and global
financial markets and operations. Management is unable to accurately predict how. the COVID-19
pandemic will affect the results of the Organization's operations due to uncertainties surrounding the
severity of the disease and the duration of the outbreak.

NOTE 16: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated subsequent events through October 26, 2021, the date that the financial
statements were available to be issued.
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year ended June 30,2021

FEDERAL GRANTOR/

PASS THROUGH GRANTOR/

PROGRAM TITLE

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE:

Pass-through program from Arkansas Department

of Human Services:

State Administrative Matching Grants

for the Supplemental Nutrition

Assistance Program (SNAP) COVID-19

Total United States Department of Agriculture

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE:

Direct programs:

Harold Rogers Prescription Drug

Monitoring Program (PDMP)

Pass-through program from Arkansas Department

of Human Services: •

Harold Rogers Prescription Drug

Monitoring Program (PDMP)

Total United States Department of Justice

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES:

Direct programs:

Telehealth Program - Rural Communities

Opioid Response (Planning)

Primary Care Training and Enhancement

Pass-through programs from Arkansas Department

of Human Services:

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services

Projects of Regional and National Significance

TANF Cluster

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF)

Community-Based Child Abuse Prevention Grants

Medicaid Cluster-Medical

Assistance Program Title XIX

Opioid STR

ASSISTANCE

LISTING

NUMBER

10.561

16.754

16.754

93.211

93.884

93.243

93.558

93.590

93.778

93.788

FEDERAL

EXPENDITURES

57.343

57,343

143,195

192,127

335,322

198,386

356,057

2,874

3,969

8,000

10,347,556

134,438

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year ended June 30,2021

FEDERAL GRANTOR/ ASSISTANCE

PASS THROUGH GRANTOR/ LISTING

PROGRAM TITLE NUMBER

Pass-through programs from Arkansas Department

of Health:

State Rural Hospital Flexibility Program 93.241

Improving the Health of Americans

through Prevention and Management of

Diabetes, Heart Disease & Stroke 93.757

Cancer Prevention and Control Programs for

State, Territorial and Tribal Organizations 93.898

Total United States Department of Health and Human Services

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FEDERAL

EXPENDITURES

125,854

682

5,636

11,183,452

$ 11,576,117

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Schedule of Expenditures of State Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2021

PROGRAM AGENCY/

PROGRAM NAME

ARKANSAS DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES

Medicaid Managed Care Services

Medicaid Review Agent for Arkansas

Medicaid Inspections of Care

State Administrative Matching Grants

for the Supplemental Nutrition

Assistance Program (SNAP)

Community Based Child Abuse Prevention

ARKANSAS DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Cancer Prevention and Control Programs for
State, Territorial and Tribal Organizations

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF STATE AWARDS

STATE

AWARD

790,725

57,343

2,000

7,849,974

24,934

STATE

EXPENDITURES

s  5,871,700 $ 5,238,110

1,128,206 1,179,361

956,370

57,343

2,000

7,433,184

22,543

$  7,874,908 $ 7,455,727

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards
Year ended June 30, 2021

NOTE 1:

The accompanying Schedules of Expenditures of Federal and Expenditures of State Awards includes the
federal and state grant activity of Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc. and is presented on the
accrual basis of accounting. The information in these schedules are presented in accordance with the
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200m Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards {Uniform Guidance) and the
Arkansas Department of Human Services. Because the schedules present only a selected portion of the
operations of Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc., they are not intended to and do not present
the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

NOTE 2:

Expenditures reported on the schedules are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost'principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein
certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Arkansas
Foundation for Medical Care, Inc. has not elected to use the 10-percent de-minimis indirect cost rate
allowed under Uniform Guidance.

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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0LANDMARK
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Fort Smith, Arkansas

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Arkansas Foundation for Medical
Care, Inc. {a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30,
2021, and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes
to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 26, 2021.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Organization's internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the Organization's financial statements will , not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by
those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Board of Directors

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization's financial statements are free
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed
no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report Is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Certlfiedlpubllc Accountants

m

Fort Smith, Arkansas

October 26, 2021
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0LANDMARK
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE

FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER

COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Fort Smith, Arkansas

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.'s (a nonprofit organization) compliance

with the types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (0MB)
Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the Organization's major
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2021. The Organization's major federal program is identified
in the summary of independent auditor's results section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and
Questioned Costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to Its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Organization's major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,

issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code
of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct
and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,

evidence about the Organization's compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary In the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Organization's
compliance.
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Board of Directors

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the Organization complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Organization is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Organization's internal control over compliance
with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal
program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report
on internal control over compliance in accordance with Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of
a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe
than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention

by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,

material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Cortifiod'Public Accountants

Fort Smith, Arkansas

October 26,2021
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year ended June 30,2021

SEaiON I. SUMMARY OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S RESULTS

1. The opinions expressed in the Independent auditor's report were;

S Unmodified □ Qualified □ Adverse □ Disclaimer

2. The independent auditor's report on internal control over financial reporting disclosed:
Significant deficiency(ies)? DYes 0 None reported
Material weakness(es)? DYes 0 No

3. Noncompliance considered material to the financial statements was disclosed by the audit?
□ Yes 0 No

4. The independent auditor's report on internal control over compliance with requirements that could
have a direct and material effect on each major federal awards program disclosed:

Significant deficiency(ies)? DYes 0 None reported
Material weakness(es)? DYes 0 No

5. The opinions expressed in the independent auditor's report on compliance with requirements that
could have a direct and material effect on each major federal awards program were:

0 Unmodified □ Qualified □ Adverse □ Disclaimer

6. The audit disclosed findings required to be reported by the Uniform Guidance?

□ Yes 0 No

7. The Organization's major program was the Medical Assistance Program Title XtX (CFDA 93.778).
8. The threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs as those terms are defined

in Uniform Guidance was $750,000.

9. The Organization qualified as a low-risk auditee as that term is defined in the Uniform Guidance?
0 Yes □ No
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year ended June 30, 2021

SEaiON II. FINDINGS RELATING TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT AS

REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH

GENERALLY ACCEPTED GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

There were no audit findings for the year ended June 30,2021.

SECTION III. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS

There were no audit findings for the year ended June 30, 2021.
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings
Year ended June 30,2021

There were no prior year audit findings for the year ended June 30, 2020.
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2021-2022 AFMC Board of Directors
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Danny Wilkerson, MD, Chair

UAMS

Term expires in 2024

(Not eligible for re-election)

Stacy C. Zimmerman, MD, Wee Chair
Unity Health

Term expires in 2022

(Not eligible for re-election)

Jennifer Styron, Treasurer

CARTI

Term expires in 2024

(Not eligible for re-election)

Aian Wilson, MD, Secretary

Drew Surgical Specialists

Term expires in 2024

(Not eligible for re-election)

LaDeil Douglas, MD, Member-at-lorge
Quality Care Pediatric & Adolescent Clinic

Term expires in 2023

(Not eligible for re-election)

Carolyn Hood, RN, BSN

UAPB

Term expires in 2024

(Not eligible for re-election)

Harvey Potts, MD, MPH

Residency Program, Hot Springs

Term expires in 2023

(Not eligible for re-election)

Gary Paxson

White River Medical Center

Term expires in 2022

Charles Frazier

Rock Region Metro

Term expires in 2024

Jane Sneed, MD

The Children's Clinic

Term expires in 2024

(Not eligible for re-election)

DebbyNye, JD

Kutak Rock, LLP

Term expires in 2023

Chris Hardin, MD

Mana - Fayetteville Diagnostic Clinic

Term expires in 2023

Joshua Diliey, MD

Arkansas Anesthesia Associates

Term expires in 2023

Glen Fenter, EdD

Marion School District

Term expires in 2023

Angie Walker, CMC, CMOM

De Queen Family Practice & Allergy Clinic

Term expires in 2023
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Jason Bass, MS

EDUCATION

Master of Science in Applied Mathematics, 1998

University of Arkansas at Little Rock

Bachelor of Science in Mathematics, 1996

University of Arkansas at Little Rock

EXPERIENCE

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care (AFMC), Little

Rock, AR

Data Scientist III, Sept 2021 - Present

•  Assist Program Evaluation Department in analysis of survey data

Arkansas Blue Cross Blue Shield, Little Rock, AR

Actuarial Analyst Dec 2013 -July 2021

•  Use Center for Medicare Hierarchical Condition Category (CMS-HCC) Medicare Advantage Risk
Adjustment Model to project mid-year payment

Built tool to summarize HCC history of any chosen MA member

Calculate return on investment for Medicare Advantage In Home Assessment program

Built tool to identify gaps in HCC history in order to target members for In Home Assessment

Support in Medicare Advantage bid

Support in Medicare Advantage Medical Loss Ratio calculation

Monthly reporting for accounting (LICS, Gap discount, rebates)

Pulaski Technical College, North Little Rock, AR

Mathematics Instructor Aug 1999 - Dec 2013

•  Taught College Algebra, Trigonometry and Calculus

•  Mentored three students who eventually became actuaries

ACTUARIAL EXAMS

•  Exam P/1: Passed March 2013

• - Exam FM/2: Passed October 2013

•  Exam MFE: Passed July 2014

•  Exam C: Passed October 2017

•  VEE Requirements:

Econ: Passed June 2014

Corporate Finance; Passed August 2015

Statistics: Passed July 2016

•  FAP Requirements:

Interim Assessment: Passed December 2015

Final Assessment: Passed March 2016
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LEADERSHIP

Supervise Summer Intern Summer 2018, 2019
Arkansas Blue Cross Blue Shield, Little Rock, AR

•  Taught intern CMS-HOC Risk Adjustment Model

• Worked on intern presentation skills

•  Mentored intern on SOA exams

Supervise Summer Intern Summer 2016
Arkansas Blue Cross Blue Shield, Little Rock, AR

•  Taught intern CMS-HCC Risk Adjustment Model

• Worked on intern presentation skills

•  Mentored intern on SOA exams

Mathematics Department Chair Aug 2000-May 2013

Pulaski Technical College, North Little Rock, AR

•  Supervised 10-12 part time instructors

•  Planned schedule of classes for the entire department

SKILLS

•  Proficient in Microsoft Excel, Word and PowerPoint

•  Proficient in SAS
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Rona Bellinger, BFA

EDUCATION

Bachelor of Fine Arts, 1994

Emphasis in Graphic Design

Henderson State University, Arkadelphia, AR

EXPERIENCE

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care (AFMC), Little Rock, AR, 1999 - present

Senior Graphic Designer

•  Produce and manage corporate website (httD://www.afmc.org). company intranet, and design,
produce, and maintain multiple affiliate company websites.

•  Coordinated and produced multimedia projects.

•  Design and produce print publications, direct mail, reports, conference exhibits, banner design,
presentations, video production, and direct photo shoots.

Advantage Publishing Co., Inc., Little Rock, AR, 1995 - 1999

Art Director

•  Designed, produced, and managed 4/c monthly international trade magazine for the pressure
washing industry, direct mail pieces, marketing, and sales for graphic design services.

Nite Lite Co., Little Rock, AR, 1994 - 1995

Assistant Art Director

•  Designed and produced 4/C catalogue and advertising for trade publications.

SKILLS

•  General Design

•  Freehand illustration and digital illustrations, print and web layout, video direction and

production, presentations, exhibit design and production

COMPUTER EXPERIENCE

• Windows - 22 years; Macintosh -10 years

•  Adobe Creative Suite; InDesign, Photoshop, Illustrator, Adobe Acrobat, Adobe Premiere,

Microsoft Office Suite, Salesforce, SharePoint, HubSpot, Constant Contact, WordPress
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Rona Bellinger

PROFESSIONAL AWARDS

National Health information World Wide Web Health Awards, Fall/Winter 2008

Merit - AFMC corporate website

Bronze Quill Award (lABC), 2008

Award of Excellence - AFMC corporate website .

PRSA 2007

"Prism Award" - AFMC corporate website

Bronze Quill Award (lABC), 2006

Internet Non-Commercial, for the AFMC corporate website

2004 World Wide Web

Mature Media Awards, Spring 2004 Bronze Winner

2004 Communicator Print Media Awards

Award of Distinction for the AFMC website

Honorable Mention for AFMC's Race for the Cure t-shirt design

Healthcare Advertising Awards, 2002

"Silver" - Healthy Family Jubilee - Total Public Relations Program

"Merit" - Guard Against Breast Cancer brochure; Quality Conference Video - Special Video

Production

lABC Bronze Quill 2001 .

"Award of Merit" - Medicaid Horizons 2000 - Photography

Healthcare Advertising Awards, 2001

"Gold" - Race for the Cure T-Shirt - Design/T-Shirt

Communicator Awards, 2001

"Award of Distinction" - Race for the Cure T-Shirt - Design/T-Shirt

PRSA 2000, "Prism Award" - Don't Let Asthma Slow You Down brochures
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Kerri Brazzel, LCSW

EDUCATION

•  Bachelor of Arts, Social Work, 1999 University of Arkansas, Fayetteville, AR

•  Master of Social Work, 2004

University of Arkansas, Little Rock, AR

LICENSES

•  Licensed Clinical Social Worker, 2108-C

EXPERIENCE

Project/Operations Director, May 2019 to present
Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Little Rock, AR

•  Manage all assigned contract requirements.
•  Manage operational aspects of the Quality Assurance programs for behavioral health,

home and community-based waiver providers. Division of Youth Services (DYS) facilities,
and inpatient psychiatric facilities

•  Manage development and implementation of contract and program deliverables across
three departmental teams; oversee various program implementation activities,
process/workflow development, and reporting criteria

•  Manage day-to-day contract activities that include teams conducting onsite/virtual
health and safety surveys, peer reviews, clinical record reviews, and all processes related
to reporting, both internal and external

•  Oversee and manage program coordination, including maintaining provider listing,
scheduling provider surveys, working with internal teams to develop Salesforce capability
for tracking and reporting

•  Directly supervise program coordinators, clinical quality staff, and program supervisors,
including interviewing and hiring professional staff; provide indirect supervisiori of three
program managers and their teams totaling 15 additional staff

•  Develop and oversee staff training and ongoing development
• Oversee internal Quality Assurance activities of contract deliverables, survey items, and

inter-rater reliability activities

Project Director, April 2014 to May 2019
Beacon Health Options (formerly ValueOptions), Little Rock, AR

•  Oversaw all provider communications such as newsletters, notification/alert
communications, consultatibn/coaching conferences with providers, maintenance of
local website, and facilitation of stakeholder meetings and conferences

•  Oversaw all provider clinical trainings - onsite and bi-monthly web-based trainings;
conducted onsite individualized provider trainings based on areas identified through
quality improvement reviews
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Kerri Brazzel

•  Developed and updated training curriculum based on Arkansas Medicaid policy and
procedures as well as trends, provider needs, and clinical best practices; new curriculum
development based on Behavioral Health Transformation of AR Medicaid program

•  Developed specialized provider training curriculum at the request of the State of
Arkansas/Medicaid for special projects to track improvement in recoupments and best
practices in documentation and reimbursement of clinical services

•  Assisted and supported Quality Department in identifying provider trends and issues
through the audit process; provided outreach, support, and individualized training for
provider improvement activities

•  Responsible for all day-to-day operations through transition to a new Outpatient
Behavioral Health Program in Arkansas, including the utilization management/clinical
processes, provider relations/communications, and quality improvement activities

•  Served as primary contact for State of Arkansas Medicaid and participated in bi-weekly
meetings to work through the process of transitioning the behavioral health programs

•  Supervised clinical utilization management staff and provided indirect supervision of all
staff as primary lead

Provider Relations Manager, November 2012 to April 2014
ValueOptions (now Beacon Health Options), Little Rock, AR

•  Responsible for all provider communications, including monthly newsletters; maintained
provider contact database, provider notifications/alerts; maintained website

•  Assisted Project Director in updating and developing provider training curriculums;
presented bi-monthly web-based provider trainings

•  Responsible for onsite and web-based provider training
•  Developed an evaluation process for provider training process
•  Responsible for technical assistance with prior authorization platform
•  Coordinated and attended all provider/stakeholder meetings as well as interagency

trainings with the State of Arkansas and Certification Unit/Division
•  Participated in provider outreach and consultations regarding provider trends and

improvement/quality performance
•  Responsible for website content and updates for Arkansas-specific Beacon website
• Worked on State of Arkansas customer service and communications committees on

provider issues and changes such as IDC-10, DMS-5, and Episodes of Care
implementations

•  Supervised clinical support/administrative staff

Medical/Clinical Social Worker, September 2009 to November 2012
Endocrinology/Diabetes and Renal Transplant
Arkansas Children's Hospital, Little Rock, AR

•  Part of a multidisciplinary healthcare team; provided the social and emotional health
needs for patients with endocrine/diabetes, renal, and acute/unit-based inpatient and
outpatient needs

•  Conducted psychosocial assessments; provided ongoing supportive and short-term
counseling and guidance; provided ongoing care coordination
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Kerri Brazzel

•  Assisted families in coping with chronic health needs and diagnoses; provided resources
and referrals for follow-up care or assistance in communities

•  Provided brief counseling and support for acute hospitalization, chronic illness diagnosis,
transitions at discharge, and ongoing adjustment to diagnosis

•  Provided conflict resolution, crisis interventions, and mediation as needed
•  Served on the Arkansas Department of Health Diabetes Advisory Council and Patient

Education committees to enhance statewide patient access to diabetes education.

Simultaneous part-time Grief Support Group Leader, Spring 2005 to 2012.
Good Mourning

•  Co-facilitated grief support group for children and adolescents
•  Implemented grief and loss curriculum over 8-week group sessions while assessing

needs for outside referrals for more intense treatment

ADDITIONAL EXPERIENCE

School-Based Mental Health Professional, May 2004 to September 2009
University of AR for Medical Services (UAMS) STRIVE Program, May 2004 to January 2008
Life Strategies Counseling, Inc., January 2008 to September 2009
Little Rock, AR

MSW Graduate Student Internships, June 2003 to May 2004
UAMS Child Study Center and \A/omen and Children First Domestic Violence Shelter
Little Rock, AR

Community Based Case Manager, November 2000 to July 2001
SchooNBased Mentor Coordinator, July 2001 to May 2003 (left to attend graduate school)
Big Brothers Big Sisters of Central Arkansas, Little Rock, AR

AmeriCorps Promise Fellow, November 1999 to October 2000
Communities in Schools of AR, Little Rock, AR
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Diego Caraballo, MA
Authorized to work in the US for any employer

Education

Master's in Demographic Studies, 2018 University of Puerto Rico Medical Sciences Campus

Certificate In Sampling Program for Survey Statisticians, 2017 University of Michigan

Bachelor's In Mathematics, 2015 University of Puerto Rico in Cayey - Cayey, Puerto Rico, US

Work Experience

Healthcare Data Scientist II

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care - Little Rock, AR

September 2021 to present

•  Currently work on maintaining and updating AFMC's dashboards on Opioid Overdoses and

National COViD-19 cases, along with data collection, management, and presentation as
necessary.

Demographic Researcher

University of Arkansas at Little Rock - Little Rock, AR

January 2019 to September 2021

• Worked as support for various projects as part of the Arkansas Economic Development Institute

doing data gathering and analysis. Independently created short blog posts discussing different

aspects of demographic trends, impacts, and inequalities in Arkansas.

Auditor

RSM Puerto Rico - San Juan, PR

March 2018 to May 2018

•  Audit communications towers on a subcontract from Sprint and Open Mobile (PR Wireless)

across Puerto Rico

independent Researcher

University of Texas at Austin - Austin, TX

August 2017 to May 2018

•  Provided consultation and data analysis to principal investigator on predictors for childhood

asthma

Independent Researcher

Kenyon College - Gambler, OH

June 2016 to May 2017

•  Provided consultation and data analysis to principal investigator on predictors for childhood

panic attacks.

Research Assistant

Puerto Rican Census Department - San Juan, PR

August 2016 to October 2016

•  Internship. Assisted in editing databases and creating map charts on QGIS to illustrate the

prevalence of various causes of death in Puerto Rico.



DocuSign Env0lope ID: 197C19B1-2BBD-4E35-960F-8ADF3D01B06F

Research Assistant

Center for Behavioral Research - University of Puerto Rico Medical Sciences - San Juan, PR
October 2015 to May 2016

•  Performed data analysis on survey data for multiple principal investigators.
Research Assistant

Center for Socio-Medical Research - University of Puerto Rico Medical Sciences campus - San Juan, PR
2013 to 2014

•  Prepared data bases and documented descriptive analysis of variables utilizing SPPS and SAS.

Skills

Research (4 years)

Data Analysis

Statistics

Slogging

SAS

R

SQL Languages

Language Fluency

Spanish

English

Publications

Lopez, I., Rodriguez, E. M., Malkoff, A., Ramirez, R., Caraballo, D. & Canino, G. (2016, September).
What predicts an ataque de nervio? Preliminary results of a longitudinal study with Puerto Rican
children. Paper presented at the National Latino/a Psychological Association Biennial
Conference, Orlando, FL.

Rodriguez, E. M., Lopez, I., Sanchez-Johnsen, L, Ramirez, R., Canino, G. J., Bird, H. Fi., & Celedon, J.
C. (2014, March). Cumulative versus domain-specific stress and asthma in Puerto Rican children:
A prospective study. Poster presented at the Society of Pediatric Psychology Annual Conference,
Philadelphia, PA.
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Michael Christly, MA

EDUCATION

Master of Arts, Computer Resources & information Management, 2006

Webster University, Fort Smith, AR

Bachelor of Science in Information Technology, 2004

University of Arkansas - Fort Smith, AR

PROFESSIONAL CERTIFICATIONS

•  2010 - Certificate of Completion, VMware vSphere: Install, Configure, & Manage (V4)

•  2010 - Certificate of Achievement, Microsoft Course - Custom Server 2008R2 & Windows 7 Configuration &

Development

•  2008 - Certificate of Achievement, Microsoft Course SOSl - Monitoring & Troubleshooting Microsoft Exchange

2007

•  2008 - Certificate of Achievement, Microsoft Course 3938 - Upgrading your Messaging Skills in Microsoft

Exchange 2007

•  2005 - Certificate of Proficiency, Cisco Networking

•  2004 - Certificate of Achievement, Microsoft Course 2087 - Implementing Microsoft Windows 2000/2003
Clustering SQL & Exchange Labs

EXPERIENCE

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Fort Smith, AR, 2011 - present

Manager, Information Technology

Previous titles: Network Services Engineer; Network Services Engineer, Team Lead

Maintains 10 physical servers & 100 virtual servers in high-demand, fast-paced, high-security environment

which supports 300 - 400 personal computers (PCs) companywide with large number of staff working from

home.

Maintains multi-site Cisco phone system with 400 stations and 20 call centers, supporting 200 agents who

work in office and from home.

Storage Area Network (SAN) administration for both Fort Smith 8t Little Rock office locations

Serves as primary Microsoft Enterprise Agreement (EA) Administrator for all licensing, downloads, and support
requests.

Manages all Fort Smith data center systems, Kohler generators, A/C units, and battery backup system.
Maintains 2 14580 series Kodak Scanner, average yearly scans 3-4 million.

Maintains Laserfiche imagining system.

Supervises a staff of nine Information Technology (IT) professionals.

Serves as a mentor to all IT staff.

Built all virtual infrastructure at Fort Smith and Little Rock campuses, from the ground up consisting of 10

physical host and 60 virtual servers.

Virtualized 30 physical servers into VMware ESXi 5.1, saving rented data center space.

Assisted with VMware Farm Operating System (OS) upgrades from 5.0 to 5.1 & from 5.1 to 6.5 with VMware

vCenter Server Appliance (VSCA).

Session Initiation Protocol (SIP) implementation in Fort Smith and Little Rock offices

Active directory domain name changes to remove illegal characters in Domain Name System (DNS) name

Coordinated, managed, and participated in company and data center move to new office location over a 3-day
period with 100% success.
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Michael Chrlstly, MA

•  Maintains near 100% patched Windows server & desktop environment.

•  Maintains a strong security posture to comply with HIPAA & health care requirements.

USA Truck Inc., Van Buren, AR, 2004 - 2011

Server Administrator

Previous Titles: Network Administrator, PC Administrator, Supervisor of Networking, Supervisor of Server
Administrators

•  Maintained 70 physical servers & 40 virtual servers in high-demand, fast-paced corporate environment which
supported 500 - 600 PCs companywide.

Experienced in all aspects of IT ordering, servers, PCs, laptops, and peripherals
Primary Microsoft Agreement (EA) Administrator for all licensing, downloads, and support request
Backup SAN administrator for EMC CX3-40c

VMware farm implementation of 8 physical host and 40 virtual servers without formal training
VMware Farm OS upgrades from 3.0 to 3.5.and from 3.5 to 4.0

OS deployment - Windows XP to 600 PCs & Windows 7 to 150 PCs
Maintained 4 scanner 5500s Kodak scanners which fully digitized all shipping records, and driver logs, average

yearly scan of 10 million.

Assisted with the data center rebuild.

Project manager for IT department for building expansion project.

Assisted with phone switch upgrade.

Supervised team of five employees.

BBA Energy Service LLC, Fort Smith, AR, 2002 - 2003
Network Administrator

• Worked with engineers and office staff in Arkansas, North Carolina, Mexico, and Spain to maintain WAN
connectivity.

•  Maintained and administrated 25 PCs and one server.

• Worked with management to implement new security policies and four Virtual Private Networks (VPNs) over
the Wide Area Network (WAN) resulting In increased security.

United States Marine Corps {Rank E-4), Camp Pendleton, CA, 1998 - 2000
Network Administrator/Assistant Systems Coordinator

• Worked with one other network administrator to maintain very intricate LAN/WAN environment
(thicknet/thinnet environment).

•  Maintained 1500 POP email accounts, 250 PCs, 3 file servers, 3 print servers, and 1 application server.

•  Trained 300 or more United States Marines in basic computer use; numerous promoted since

•  Maintained Department of Defense SECRET security clearance for 4 years.

•  Supervised 30-35 employees.
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Shayla Dixon

EDUCATION

Master of Science In Healthcare Data Analytics, expected graduation 2022

University of Arkansas for Medical Sciences, Little Rock, AR

Bachelor of Science in Mathematics, 2019

Bachelor of Science in Education Mathematics

Minor In Statistics

Arkansas State University, Jonesboro, AR

EXPERIENCE

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care (AFMC), Little Rock, AR, June 2021 - present

Healthcare Data Scientist I

•  Manipulate data and conduct data analysis using SAS software.

•  Interpret and summarize results from statistical analyses by producing graphs, charts, and other
visual representations of data.

•  Prepare reports of analysis to present to clients, both internally and externally.
•  Assist in data entry, data verification, validation of results and database maintenance as required

or directed.

University of Arkansas for Medical Sciences, Little Rock. AR, February 2021 - present

Student Researcher

•  . Collaborated weekly with lead researcher to continually cultivate research on opioid prescribing

and usage in Arkansas.

•  Created and submitted data request forms to the Arkansas Prescription Drug Monitoring Program

(PDMP) and Institutional Review Board (IRB) to initiate research projects.

•  Preformed analysis in ArcGIS and R to evaluate specific research questions and create

visualizations for publication.

•  Participated in a professional community intended to expand knowledge, apply for grants, and

create professional portfolio.

Valley View Junior High School, Jonesboro, AR, January 2019 - May 2019

Student Teacher, Mathematics

•  Created and executed daily lesson plans and classroom activities for over 200 students.
•  Collaborated with classroom advisor and campus supervisor to develop teaching skills integrating

technology.

•  Part of a professional community that helped expand ideas and knowledge about education.

•  Cultivated a classroom environment in which students felt supported, empowered, and excited

about learning.

•  Served as Head Coach for Valley View Junior High Girls Soccer team that taught young girls to

develop good sportsmanship, advanced soccer skills, teamwork, and skills through training.
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Sheryl Hurt, BS, CPHIT, CPEHR, PCMH CCE

EDUCATION

Bachelor of Science, Biology, 1998

University of Arkansas, Fayetteville, AR

LICENSURE AND CERTIFICATIONS

•  Patient-Centered Medical Home (PCMH) Content Expert Certification - National Committee for Quality

Assurance (NCQA), 2016

•  Certified Professional in Electronic Health Records, 2011

•  Certified Professional in Health Information Technology, Oct. 2010

EXPERIENCE

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Little Rock, AR, 2014 - present

Manager, Provider Relations, Outreach Services

•  Management of Policy and Education Provider Outreach Specialists who work in clinics across the state to

provide Arkansas Medicaid policy updates and changes

•  Provide education on Episode of Care reports by assisting providers to understand cost drivers and how to
increase quality metrics; and PCMH requirements including policy requirements, enrollment, and reading of

the reports.

•  Recruitment of State Innovation Model (SIM) providers

•  Monitor team progress related to contract deliverables and assist with development of new lines of

business.

•  Episode of Care Lead to internal team members and expert resource to external clients.
•  Develop, conduct, and facilitate the yearly state Medicaid Educational Conference.

Provider Representative, Outreach Services, 2010 - 2014

Arkansas Pediatric Clinic, Little Rock, AR

Interim Office Manager/Assistant Administrator, 2007 - 2010

Billing Manager and IT, 2007 - 2010

North PulaskI Diagnostic Clinic, Sherwood, AR, 2000 - 2007

Accountant; Credentialing and Insurance Representative

Synder Healthcare, South Arkansas territory, 1998 - 2000

Pharmaceutical Sales Representative
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Sydney Lewis, MPH

EDUCATION

Master of Public Health, Biostatlstlcs, 2019 University of Arkansas for Medical Sciences, Little Rock, AR

Bachelor of Arts, Psychology, 2016 Lyon College, Batesville, AR

Associate of Arts, General Education, 2013 University of Arkansas Community College at Batesville, AR

EXPERIENCE

Statistician, February 2019 - present

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Little Rock, AR

•  Evaluate programs that receive funding for grants related to the opioid epidemic in
Arkansas.

•  Develop methodologies and evaluation plans and write program evaluation reports using

quantitative and qualitative data.
•  Create projects and data collection tools in REDCap^'^.
•  Data analysis and cleaning in SAS®

•  Data.visualizations and spatial analysis in ArcGIS

Analytical Services Department Intern, Preceptorship, Aug. 2018 - Dec. 2018

•  Created a needs assessment based on Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACEs) for counties
in Arkansas. Worked extensively with SAS®.

•  Improved skills in SAS®, including; PROC SQL, PROC GMAP, macros, left Joins, and right

Joins.

RESEARCH EXPERIENCE

Principle Investigator, Jan. 2019 - May 2019

Integrated Learning Experience
University of Arkansas for Medical Sciences (UAMS), Little Rock, AR

•  ILE title: "A Preliminary Analysis of Potential Indicators of the Opioid Epidemic in Arkansas."
•  The purpose of this analysis was to identify possible indicators of opioid-related overdose

deaths throughout the 75 counties in Arkansas. Statistics were analyzed using SAS® and R.

Research was collected and analyzed over two semesters. Research was presented during

Student Research Day at UAMS.

Researcher, Senior Thesis, Aug. 2015 - May 2016

Department of Psychology
Lyon College, Batesville, AR

•  Senior thesis title: "Perceptions of Yourself and Others: The Relationship between

Emotional Intelligence and Gender." The purpose of this study was to determine if there

was a relationship between emotional intelligence and different aspects of gender:
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Sydney Lewis, MPH

masculinity, femininity, and androgyny. Participants were asked to predict the emotions of
a series of facial expressions after being primed to think in a masculine way, feminine way,
or androgynous way. Research was conducted and data was analyzed independently over
the course of two semesters. Statistics were analyzed using SPSS. Research was
subsequently presented to an audience of approximately 100 peers and colleagues.

Researcher, Aug. 2015 - Dec. 2015

Intermediate Research Methods, Department of Psychology

•  Research included examination of the relationship between emotional intelligence in
student athletes versus emotional intelligence in college students. Statistics were analyzed

using SPSS. Research was conducted and data was analyzed with a group of three other
student researchers.

Researcher, Aug. 2014 - Dec. 2014

Psychology of Propaganda, Department of Psychology

•  Research included content analysis of the types of messages conveyed in a variety of
political propaganda commercials. Statistics were analyzed using SPSS. Research was
collected and data was analyzed with two other student researchers.
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Shalini Manjanatha, BS

EDUCATION

Bachelor of Science, Major in Statistics, 1990

Iowa State University, Ames, Iowa

EXPERIENCE

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care (AFMC), Little Rock, AR, September 2019 - Present

Senior Healthcare Data Scientist

•  Provide data analysis and reporting of quality improvement projects, surveys, and HEDIS needs.

•  Download data from large databases and generate SAS.code to edit data for accuracy and

completeness.

•  Manipulate data and conduct data analysis using SAS software.

•  Create survey databases and projects in REDCap'^'^.

•  Interpret, summarize, and document results from analyses.

•  Assist in data verification and verification of results as required.

•  Update project methodologies as needed to accomplish project goals and objectives.

Arkansas Department of Health. Little Rock, AR. June 2007 - August 2019

Center for Health Statistics

Software Support Analyst

Generated SAS edit programs for data cleaning and verification.

Used SAS software to link different data files, and generated reports in different formats including

HTML, RTF, PDF, and Excel using SAS ODS.

Used SAS Macros for common tasks including linking data files. Dynamic Data Exchange (DDE) to

send data to Excel, Word, or to read in data from Excel to SAS system.

Assisted colleagues with SAS programs for different projects including Youth Risk Behavior Survey

(YRBS) and Behavioral Risk Factor Surveillance System (BRFSS), as needed.

Used various SAS procedures including Proc Freq, Proc Print, Proc Genmod, Proc Report, Proc

Summary, Proc Means, and Proc Logistic, and Proc Tabulate to analyze data and generate reports.

Worked on data requests from internal and external clients and provided reports in a timely

manner.

Medical Economist, August 2000 - May 2007

•  Developed SAS Programs for data cleaning, validation, analysis, and report generation.

•  Developed survey edits criteria and implemented them with SAS edit programs; conducted
statistical analyses ofvsurveys to identify areas of interest; developed and produced reports to

convey survey results to communities; and coordinated the collection of data from counties

•  Used SAS software to import/export data to external file formats including Excel and flat files, and

modify datasets using Set, Merge, Sort and Update Formats & Functions.

• Wrote SAS macros to create tables, graphs, and listings, and generated graphs and charts using SAS

procedures including Proc Gplot and Proc Gchart.

1
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Shalini Manjanatha

•  Worked on different projects including YRBS, BRFSS, and Pregnancy Risk Assessment Monitoring
System (PRAMS).

Health Program Analyst, May 2000 - July 2000

•  Developed SAS Programs for data cleaning, validation, analysis, and report generation.
•  Developed survey edits criteria and implemented them with SAS edit programs.
•  Worked on county-level YRBS and BRFSS.

Arkansas Children's Hospital, Little Rock, AR, July 1995 - November 1995
Department of Pedlatrics/CARE

Data Analyst

•  Converted Excel and text data files to SAS datasets and cleaned and prepared datasets for analysis.

•  Assisted faculties with analysis of data using SAS software; created and explored new methods and
programs for designs and analyses of statistical data

University of Arkansas for Medical Sciences (UAMS), Little Rock, AR, February 1993 - June 1995
Department of Psychiatry

Statistical Programmer/Analyst

•  Provided statistical computer programming support to assigned faculty; instructed and advised
research staff; performed research and data analysis on schizophrenia data; and provided requested
data in a timely manner

Arkansas Children's Hospital, UAMS, Little Rock, AR, August 1992 - January 1993
Child Study Center

Data Manager/Research Assistant ,

•  Organized, and entered data using dBase; performed statistical analysis using SAS for researchers
for presenting posters, papers, or articles, and published results in peer-reviewed journals; assisted
staff members with hardware and software problems.

•  Helped work study students with data collection and organization.

Food and Drug Administration, June 1992 - July 1992
National Center for Toxicological Research (NCTR), Jefferson, AR

Mathematical Statistician

•  Assisted Scientists at NCTR with analysis, inference, and documentation of statistical data; wrote
SAS programs for analyses of research data

Arkansas Department of Human Services. Little Rock, AR, August 1991 - May 1992
Division of Research and Statistics

Volunteer, Statistician II

•  Compiled, keyed, and edited statistical data for Medicaid recipients; eligible and expenditures using
DBase and Lotus 1-2-3

COMPUTER SKILLS

Experience in SAS software, MS Excel, MS Access, Windows 10, MS Word, Outlook, and PowerPoint
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Shalini Manjanatha

PUBLICATIONS

Wherry, J.N., Jolly, J.B., Feldman, J., Adam, B., and Manjanatha S. (1994), The child dissociative checklist;
preliminary findings of a screening measure. Journal of Child Sexual Abuse, Vol. 3(3), 51 -66.

Wherry, J.N., Jolly, J.B., Feldman, J., Adam, B., and Manjanatha S. (1995) Child sexual behavior inventory
scores for inpatient Psychiatric boys: An exploratory study. Journal of Child Sexual Abuse, Vol. 4(3).
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Walter Lee Manns, MBA, LADAC

EDUCATION:

Franklin Pierce University, Rindge, NH, 2001

Master of Business Administration

Antioch University, Keene, NH, 1998

Master of Arts, Substance Abuse Counseling

Arkansas Tech University, Russellville, AR, 1995

Bachelor of Arts, Psychology

PROFESSIONAL CERTIFICATION AND LICENSURE:

LADAC -Licensed Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselor

AADC -Advanced Alcohol and Drug Counselor

EXPERIENCE

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care Oct. 2019 - Present

Outreach Specialist, Substance Abuse Team Lead
/•

On behalf of Arkansas Department of Health, Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance

(DPSQA):

•  Conduct license reviews of alcohol and drug abuse treatment programs

•  Investigate complaints and incidents reported to DPSQA

•  Conduct Quality of Care record reviews for mental health and substance abuse fee-for-service
providers contracted with Arkansas Medicaid

On behalf of New Hampshire Division for Behavioral Health Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services

•  Conduct annual Independent Peer Reviews

Arkansas Community Corrections Sept. 2018 - Sept. 2019
Counselor/Advisor

•  Provided individual and group counseling to Drug Court participants

•  Functioned as court liaison providing treatment recommendations to presiding judge

•  Provided substance counseling to parolees participating in Vivitrol pilot program

CATAR Clinic & Stockton Medical Group Aug. 2016 - Aug. 2018

Clinic Administrator

•  Provided oversight of daily operations for outpatient medication assisted treatment clinic

•  Provided management support for 3 additional satellite medication assisted treatment clinics

•  Monitored compliance with regulations and standards of DEA, U.S. Substance Abuse and Mental
Health Services Administration (SAMHSA), Arkansas Division of Behavioral Health Services,

Arkansas Board of Pharmacy, and CARF

•  Provided ongoing reports to state/federal agencies and clinic owners/stakeholders

•  Provided community outreach and marketing

•  Facilitated quarterly focus groups to solicit feedback from consumers

•  Facilitated group therapy and crisis intervention to patients on an as-needed basis
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University of Arkansas Medical Sciences Sept. 2014 - Aug. 2016

Licensed Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselor

•  Provided federally mandated group and individual counseling to outpatient methadone and
suboxone patients

•  Monitored treatment compliance

•  Conducted prior authorization and concurrent review from third party payers

•  Provided crisis stabilization and case management to assigned patients

Arkansas Department of Community Corrections Feb. 2014 - Sept. 2014

Substance Abuse Counselor

•  Provided substance abuse counseling to inmates in a community corrections lockup facility

Bridgeway Hospital June 2003-Sept. 2013

Director of Intake/Admissions

•  Conducted intake assessments to determine appropriate level of care

•  Completed prior authorizations with third-party payer to ensure appropriate reimbursement

•  Provided reports to CEO, Marketing Director, and regional leadership regarding intake activity

and trends

•  Insured ongoing compliance with standards of: Joint Commission, CMS, and Arkansas

Department of Health
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Linda Newell, BS

EDUCATION

Graduate Certificate in Applied Statistics, 2015

University of Arkansas at Little Rock, AR

Bachelor of Science in Mathematics, 2013

Minor in Statistics

University of Arkansas at Little Rock, AR

CERTIFICATIONS

SAS Certified Advanced Programmer, currently preparing

SAS Certified Base Programmer, 2015

EXPERIENCE

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Little Rock, AR

Supervisor, Survey Research, 2017 - present

•  Develop, coordinate, and manage survey research, data collection, reporting and processes by controlling
internal utilization and external dissemination of the survey.

•  Manage related staff and coordinate with appropriate staff to provide improved readability, timely analysis
and reporting, benchmarking, and trending of survey research data for research and quality improvement
within AFMC, and to optimize related services to all AFMC clients.

•  Review project performance, implement changes as needed to improve and effectively document services,
simplify workflow, and assure compliance with contract requirements and continuous quality improvement

and quality assurance protocols.

Statistician I, 2015 - 2017

•  Provided statistical support for the development of measurement/re-measurement techniques, data analysis

and reporting of quality improvement projects, surveys, and Healthcare Effectiveness Data and Information
Set(HEDIS) needs.

•  Assisted in the coordination of data activities for specific projects and assured compliance with established
protocols and contractual requirements.

•  Interpreted, summarized, and documented results from statistical analyses.

Oaklawn Jockey Club, Hot Springs, AR

Database Analyst, Information Technology, 2014-2015

•  Translated business questions into defined analytics.

•  Provided and presented data reporting, results, and analysis through SQL and Access query methods.
•  Created automated daily reports through Microsoft SQL Server Report Builder for senior management.
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Nathan Ray, MBA

EDUCATION

Master of Business Administration, Management and Business Ethics, 2013
Harding University, Searcy, AR

Bachelor of Science, Business Administration, 2010

Arkansas State University, Jonesboro, AR

Associate of Arts, Business Emphasis, 2008

Arkansas State University-Beebe. AR

EXPERIENCE

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Little Rock, AR

Senior Vice President, Business Operations Managemeni 2019 - present
•  Analyze corporate business services and technology infrastructure functions and aligns

resources with the company's strategic plans

•  Select and manages information processing, communication systems, and operations
strategies

•  Review all information processing and storage equipment and software for acquisition,

storage, and retrieval

•  Manage utilization management programs

•  Support core business infrastructure needs
•  Support corporate contact center programs

Chief Technology Officer 2015-2019
•  Provided executive leadership, design, and strategy with respect to all IT systems:

traditional In-house systems and cloud-based solutions.

• Worked with internal teams to design and develop the Salesforce platform and
architecture to track key business metrics.

•  Mahaged the organization's use of data analytics in decision-making as well as contract
performance deliverables.

•  Developed and enhanced a communication system for the company, including network
infrastructure and wide area connectivity.

• Worked closely with project managers to ensure optimum allocation and utilization of

technology and analytic resources.

•  Ensured AFMC's information technology (IT) operations adhered to local, state, and

federal laws, including data confidentiality/security and Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) compliance.

•  Ensured the security of the business' IT assets.

•  Established the IT, Health Information Exchange, and Analytic departments' operative

goals and objectives.

•  Met regularly with the Executive Team to offer direction and support for inter-departmental
projects and to confer on organizational goals, objectives, and policies.
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HITArkansas REC Director 2013 - 2015

•  Responsible for the overall Regional Extension Center (REC) operational activities related
to the assessment, planning, development, and Health IT implementation to support
electronic health record utilization with more than 1,500 health care providers across the

state of Arkansas.

•  Served on the Office of the National Coordinator (ONC) Salesforce Community of Practice

and Change Advisory Board (CAB).
•  Ensured that all program activities address designated performance indicators, provided

education means to the appropriate target audience, and were performed within the grant
time frame, including: strategies, interventions, implementation, and evaluation plans in
accordance with contract deliverables and goals.

• Worked with quality specialists, provider representatives, and internal/external customers
to identify, develop, and implement strategic objectives to overcome any issues related to
the implementation of health IT within provider offices.

•  Developed long-term and short-term plans for REC operations, sustainability, disaster
recovery, staffing and inventory. Facilitated mission goals across teams at organizational
level and among external customers.

•  Researched, evaluated, recommended, and Implemented new health information
technologies (HIT) based on the provider's needs and priorities, project feasibility, and
financial constraints.

•  Conducted evaluations of provider systems, systems policies, and systems support with
planning and development of HIT requirements, compliance standards, data standards,
and cross-agency interfaces.

•  Tracked and analyzed departmental performance against stated objectives and goals.
Ensured achievement of objectives within timelines and budget.

•  Aggressively developed relationships and promoted mutually beneficial partnerships with
local, state, and national entities, clients, key stakeholders, constituents, other healthcare
organizations and the community at large. Developed partnerships and served as liaison
with local, state, and national entities.

•  Developed and coordinated more than $300,000 sustainability service lines including:
health IT optimization, privacy and security, and Meaningful Use compliance.

•  Developed, launched, and supported practice transformation service line to support the
Aledade Accountable Care Organization project.

HITArkansas Data Manager 2010-2013
•  Served as Salesforce Customer Relationship Management (CRM) lead for REC program.

•  Coordinated the development and interpretation of all data reporting requirements.
Developed standards of performance and monitored the data development and
implementation process.

•  Reviewed project performance and implemented changes as needed to improve services
and workflows.

•  Assured compliance with contract requirements.

•  Created trend reports for local, state, and national stakeholders. Summarized report
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results for presentations and utilized for marketing purposes.

•  Served as technical liaison for data management issues that affected the day-to-day

operations of customers and contractors.

•  Selected, directed, coached, and evaluated assigned program staff.

•  Ensured the quality and accuracy of services to ensure performance goals were met within

designated time frame.

Primary Care Physician (POP) Profiling Specialist 2008 - 2010
•  Coordinated and produced primary, care physician and emergency room profile reports.
•  Improved readability, timely analysis, benchmarking, and trending of the data for research

and quality improvement within the ConnectCare and ARKids First programs.
•  Effectively delivered reports and clinical data to the AFMC Provider Relations team.
•  Created and maintained databases to help manage various projects.

•  Supported the Arkansas Medicaid Information Interchange (AMII) and managed user
accounts using the Microsoft Management Console in Active Directory.

•  Served on review team producing survey executive summaries for Arkansas Medicaid.
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Jared Reid

PROFESSIONAL CERTIFICATIONS AND LICENSURES

•  Certified Salesforce Administrator, Salesforce Platform App Builder

•  Emergency Medical Technician's License

EXPERIENCE

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Fort Smith, AR . 2015 - present

Assistant Director Business Intelligence, Salesforce Architect

•  Supervise 12 Bl team members consisting of analysts, project managers, and developers
•  Responsible for overall Salesforce architecture and development decisions

FRED'S Pharmacy - Jacksonville, AR 2013 - 2015

Pharmacy Technician

•  Responsible for taking accurate patient information, entering prescriptions, entering insurance
information, billing insurance companies including Medicaid, Medicare part D providers,
workers compensation

•  Filled prescriptions to order assuring accuracy at all steps of workflow process, communicating
with patients any administration instructions or warnings

Metropolitan Emergency Medical Services-Little Rock, AR 2012-2013

Emergency Medical Technician

• Worked as crew on ambulances providing prehospital emergent care in the Little Rock service
area

•  Provided detailed reports to medical staff at receiving hospitals

• Worked as patient transportation crew for non-ambulatory patients serving nursing homes,
rehabilitations centers, and psychiatric facilities

Yarnell's ice Cream Co. - SEARCY, AR 2005 - 2011

Senior Data Analyst

• Worked with heads of sales & marketing, manufacturing, distribution, and accounting to

develop data driven strategies and solutions to highly varied goals and needs
Worked with IT staff to coordinate specific data collection and management policies

Utilized ACNielsen market research data as well as Wal-Mart Retail-Link sales and demographic

data sources to support marketing campaigns, assisting in building professional presentations
given to major chain buyers

Built reporting systems based on predictive algorithms that drove factory orders and materials
purchasing ensuring efficient supply chain management

Created dynamic cost-per-unit manufacturing analysis system to support business management
decisions

Integrated sales and delivery staff performance metrics into payroll system to facilitate a
complex incentive-based pay structure
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SKILLS

Computer literacy including advanced experience in Microsoft Excel, Access, PowerPoint, and
Outlook.

Creating professional and readable. Excel charts, graphs, and tables with integrated data sources
Developing and formatting pivot tables

Filtering and summarizing large data sets
Linking tables and generating queries with calculated and formatted output fields for custom
reports

Understand basic medical terminology

Work well in a team dynamic but also self-motivating

Able to simplify and explain complex data and ideas
Able to manage time and prioritize workload
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James W. Strickland

EDUCATION

PulaskI Technical College, North Little Rock, 2002

Associate of Applied Science in Computer Information Systems

EXPERIENCE

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care Little Rock, AR Sept. 2017 - Present

Specialist, Computer Support II

•  Provide computer support specialist to staff members as requested

•  Responsible for company-wide IT equipment inventory

Specialist, Computer Support Feb. 2016 - Sept. 2017

•  Provided support to users both in person and remote, install/setup workstations and laptops,
install software and operating system updates to workstations and servers

Pathfinder Inc. Jacksonville, AR May 2014 - Sept. 2015

Computer Training Specialist

•  Responsible for maintaining and managing a computer lab used by adults with physical and
intellectual disabilities

•  Maintain hardware and software installation as well as providing instruction and guidance to

the users of the computer lab

Pathfinder Inc. Jacksonville, AR Dec. 2014 - May 2015

Computer Hardware Analyst

•  Responsible for ensuring server backups ran successfully and moving the backups to an offsite

vault

•  Managed domain controllers, DNS servers, DHCP servers, and print servers

•  Provided hardware and software support for 35 facilities and nearly 400 users spread across

Arkansas white maintaining software updates and providing technical support by phone, email,

and desktop sharing software

•  Managed new users, groups, and group policy objects on the domain

•  Collaborated with other team members on special projects such as migrating workstations from

Windows XP to Windows 7 and moving from our web host's email to Google Mail

SKILLS

Administering Windows Server 2012, 2016, and 2019

Maintaining workstation and server hardware

Providing technical support to non-technical users

Providing support to users In remote locations

Equipment inventory management
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Kent Thompson, MPH

EDUCATION

Master of Public Health, Emphasis in Biostatistics, 2014

University of Arkansas for Medical Sciences, Little Rock, AR
Bachelor of Arts, Biology, 2007

Hendrix College, Conway, AR

EXPERIENCE

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Little Rock, AR 2017 - present

Supervisor, Program Evaluation

•  Program manager of the Department of Justice. Category 6 Grant: Data Collection
Through Collaboration: Building a Comprehensive Dashboard and Archival Risk
Factors (ARF):

•  Lead evaluator for the Arkansas Prescription Drug/Opioid Overdose-Related Deaths

(PDO), Arkansas First Responders-Comprehensive Addiction and Recovery Act (FR-
CARA), Arkansas State Opioid Response II (SOR II), and New Hampshire Block
Grant.

•  Former lead evaluator for the State Epidemiological Outcomes Workgroup (SEOW),
Partnership for Success (PFS), State Opioid Response (SOR), both the Arkansas

and Alabama State Targeted Response to the Opioid Crisis (STR), and Alabama
MAT-PDOA.

•  Administrator of AFMC's REDCap and ArcGIS and distributions.

Statistician il 201.5-2017

•  Implemented and managed local install of REDCap electronic data capture system;
included creation and distribution of numerous electronic surveys as well as utilized the

double data entry feature to allow the data entry staff to accurately and efficiently enter
paper data.

•  Conducted data analysis with multiple projects associated with Arkansas's Medicaid
program and the State Epidemiological Outcomes Workgroup (SEOW)

•  Provided technical assistance for subrecipients of the PFS grant

•  Developed Salesforce administrations with Arkansas's Patient Centered Medical Home
- Quality Assurance

•  Created yearly report/informational tools for the SEOW

University of Arkansas for Medical Sciences, Little Rock, AR 2011 - 2015
Childhood Obesity Prevention Research Program

Administrative Speciaiist

•  Conducted statistical analysis, including agreement analysis and logistic analysis
•  Data management

•  Created and implemented a mobile electronic data capture system

•  Created physical and electronic data collection instrument

•  Collected data on numerous populations including middle school students, parolees,

medical students, etc.

•  Trained and supervised masters-level dietetic and public health interns

•  Created of newsletters, scientific posters, and various other publicity materials

including graphical design Website design and management

• Website design and management



Jennifer Chaney

Specialist, Healthcare Evaluation

EDUCATION

Certificate of Health Information Technology and Business in Office Procedures. 2012

College of Technology

University of Arkansas at Monticello, McGehee, AR

EXPERIENCE

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care (AFMC), Little Rock, AR, July 2017 - present

Specialist, Healthcare Evaluation

Administrative Support 11

Research and prepare drafts for reports and presentations for manager and team members.

Support assigned area(s) and communications team in the coordination and collaboration of tool and
materials development.

AS|Sist in the review, verification, testing, and editing of work produced by other staff members as directed.
Maintain a general working knowledge of assigned area(s) activities and requirements.
Champion use of corporate-provided software and tools to accomplish requirements.

Support project management.

Complete assigned task information and evidence gathering, project participation, measurement, and
evaluation.

Use appropriate project management tools to support corporate reporting functions and activities.
Understand and utilize appropriate project-tracking software for reporting purposes.

Provide progress and updates of team activities as requested.

Assist in coordinating team schedules, considering team responsibilities, department workload,
equipment, and resource/capacity constraints and vendor capabilities.

Arrange necessary resources for internal and external meetings.

Assist with training sessions, workgroup meetings, workshops, and/or seminars.

Seek and facilitate problem resolution and general assistance or referral as needed.

Develop and maintain contact groups for each area of responsibility and related activity, both internal and
external.

Provide administrative support services.

Serve as back-up for other support staff and team members as assigned or requested.

Actively participate in Administration Team meetings to address continuing education, skillset
advancement and corporate administrative needs

Administrative Support, Temporary Employee, November 2016 - July 2017

•  Data entry; Ten Key

•  Scanning

•  Customer service



Jennifer Chaney

•  Collaborated and supported work for other team members.

•  Reviewed and verified surveys.

•  Performed research.

•  Provided administrative support services.

Specialty Eye Care of South Arkansas, Monticello, AR, December 2012 - September 2016

Medicat Records Clerk

Provided administrative support services.

File management

Scheduled patient appointments.

Answered phones.

Faxed and called for any referrals.

Filed and retrieved charts.

Created new charts.

Fax and mail distribution

Data entry

Harvest Rice, McGehee, AR, December 2001 - September 2010

Shippmg Clerk/Quality Control

Record management

Prepared outgoing and incoming inventory.

Daily billing of railcars of products shipped

Scheduled appointments for truck delivery of product.

Daily reports of production

Weighed in trucks.

Prepared bill of lading and scale tickets.

Performed test on rice and bran for quality.

Provided administrative support services.

Area Agency on Aging. Lake Village, AR, January 2008 - October 2008

Chicot County Clerk

Prepared and logged items for mailing daily and logged orders received daily.

Performed monthly verification of eligibility for clients and filed in client folders.

Scheduled substitute aide to cover absences and notified client.

Employee files maintenance

Answered the phones.

Performed testing and prepared for in-service training.

Assisted in coordination of employee relations activities.

Assisted RNs with hiring aide personnel for different programs.

Filed charts and check sheets on a daily and weekly basis.

Typed correspondence, reports, and forms.



TONOKA BATTS-Settles

Career objective

Experienced Bankruptcy Paralegal with over 15 years customer service, legal and administrative experience, seeking
a full-time position in a result driven organization.

SUMMARY OF QUALIFICATIONS

■  Strong accounting skills; accounts payable, accounts receivable, general ledger, inventory control
•  Enthusiastic and determined individual with ability to build long-lasting relationships, and ensure high

levels of customer satisfaction

■  Excellent written, oral, and presentation skills
■  Strong planning, organizational, and multi-tasking skills
•  Outstanding interpersonal skills
•  Extensive customer service experience

•  Self-motivated, entrepreneurial initiative, strong work ethic and passion for success
■  Exceptional Computer Skills: LPS, CPI, FX. Trustee Network 13 Website, PACER, Aacer Best Case, Top

Form, QuickBooks, Microsoft Office XP, Windows Vista and (Word, PowerPoint, Excel, Outlook)

Professional Experience

Arkansas Foundation of Medical Care. Little Rock. AR February 2017-Present
Specialist Healthcare Evaluation

Conduct site visits, staff and client interviews for recovery & treatment facility evaluations in person and virtually,
coordinate and lead focus groups in-person and virtually, assist with project management, use developed project
management templates and coordinate and manage task information and evidence gathering, project
participation, measurement and evaluation, develop and maintain multiple project schedules/timelines in
WorkZone, perform data entry for multiple projects and multiple clients into both internal and/or external program
databases, create projects in REDCap, register external clients with access to REDCap for reporting purposes,
assist in coordinating team schedules, provide administrative support, coordinate and organize team internal and
external business meetings, communicate effectively with all internal and external customers, communicate with
community stakeholders and assist with questions pertaining to prevention tools and books.

Wilson and Associates. LLC. Little Rock. AR Feb 2006-March 2007 & August 2012 -May 2016
CSA II- Legal Assistant

Promoted to Legal Assistant December 2015 Responsible for accurately and timely preparing and processing all
chapter 7 and chapter 13 proofs of claim and chapter 7 motions for relief for multiple clients. Responsible for
trustee follow up reporting and reconciling as well as figure reviews for counsel. Responsible for using best
practices for increased productivity and meeting increased business volume with high demand clients. Excellent
with time and case management, ensuring the meeting of deadlines and needed documentation requested and
attained in order to meet said deadlines. Ensured reporting for daily, weekly and monthly tasks completed
accurately and quickly and that any areas with challenges were addressed and resolved.

Madden Law Firm. Little Rock. AR March 2008-August 2012
Office Manager

Managed a Bankruptcy Firm in Little Rock, AR and overseen the day-to-day operations of our four satellite offices
in Hot Springs, Conway, Pine Bluff, and West Memphis, AR.
Managed office of eight (8) support staff members and threes (3) attorneys.

I served as the Attorney-Client Liaison. I handled client complaints within the offices and ensured that client
intakes complied with the Bankruptcy Rules for Policy and Procedures. Responsible for all E-filing with the United
States Bankruptcy Court. As office manager, I attended Creditor/Debtor Bar meetings each month to report to
Counsel. Coordinated attorneys' schedules to meet the demand of client appointments. I also traveled to various
satellite offices to meet with potential clients.
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While serving as the manager, I implemented a time keeping system, established, and structured HR policies.
Implemented the petty cash system Responsible for accounts payable and receivables. Maintain our inventory of
supplies and ensured the latest updates on all software and warranties. Met with various vendors to negotiate
contracts and leases.

Wesley Chapel United Methodist Church. Little Rock, AR April 2008-May 2010
Church Administrative Assistant

Assisted the Pastor and Associate Pastors with administrative duties and weekly liturgy. Assisted in Research.
Maintain the membership database. Prepared a weekly bulletin. Overseen special programs and projects.
Attended workshops for continual education according to the Book of Discipline. Coordinated luncheons and
meetings. Assisted in Chapel on Wednesday for the Students at Philander Smith College. Maintain updates on
software and warranties for the Wesley Chapel.

Crawtev & Deloche. PA. Little Rock. AR March 2007- February 2008
Paralegal/Office Manager

Responsible for the day-to-day operations of the office. Schedule appointments for the Attorney. Served as
liaison for Attorney to client. Responsible for client intakes and ensure the e-filing of clients' bankruptcy petitions.
Tracking of creditor meetings and Bankruptcy Court hearings. Responsible for the court dockets to ensure
settlements. Responsible for accounts receivables. Ensure payment of filing fees in a timely manner and in full.
Scheduling appointments. Maintain the petty cash box. Maintain/tracking of lOLTA Account.

DIckerson Law Firm. P.A.. Little Rock. AR April 2001-December 2005
Administrative Assistant/Paralegal

Worked the scheduling desk where appointments for the attorneys are scheduled. Coordinated with the attorney
their calendars daily to ensure of proper staffing within each office. Scheduled return appointments for clients with
the Paralegals. Responsible monthly statistics each month. Responsible for petty cash in the office. Assisting
Paralegals for data entry of clients' information and pulling clients credit reports. Answer multi-line phones.
Assisted our Director of Administration with employee benefits. Traveling to satellite offices for audits and to assist
attorneys.

Education

Associates of Arts Degree In Business Management
Pulaski Tech, AR • Expected December 2022

Honors Degree
Mountain Pine High School, Mtn. Pine, AR May 1992

Certifications and licenses

United States Federal Bankruptcy Court
Certification of Federal Bankruptcy E-Filing May 2003

State of Arkansas November 2015
Ordained Minister Credentials

Arkansas Prevention & Certification Board Pending for December 2022
Prevention Specialist

Membership8/community service/ activities

•  Member of the APHA- American Public Health Association

•  Member of the ArPHA- Arkansas Public Health Association

•  Member of the APNet- Arkansas Prevention Network

•  Member for the ACE's Coalition- Arkansas
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SELECTED TECHNICAL EXPERIENCE AND PROJECTS

Prescription Drug Overdose Grant Jul* 2017 - present
Lead Evaluator; created data collection instruments including the Naloxone Reporting Tool
used by first responders statewide to report naloxone administrations.

Partnership for Success Nov. 2016 - present
Conduct technical assistance with subrecipients to aide in their biannual reporting. Created
state and individual reports.

State Epidemioiogical Outcomes Workgroup Nov. 2016 - present
Created a statewide report on the causes and consequences of the use of alcohol, tobacco,
and other drugs as well as other informational tools.

Anaiyzing Health Disparities in Arkansas Jan. 2014 - Aug. 2014
Conducted a Bayesian analysis of the 10 year disparity in life expectancy between counties
in northwest and southeast Arkansas.
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Ai'kaDsas Foundation for Medical Care (AFMC)

Key Personnel

July 2022 - June 2023 (Non-Smvey Year)

Name Job Title Salary

% Paid

from this

Contract

Amoimt

Less

Fringe

Kent Tliompson
Supervisor, Program
svaluaiion

21% Hi

Linda Newcll Supervisor, Survey Research H 12% wm

Shalini Manjanatha
Senior Healthcare Data

Scientist
12%H

Stiayla Dixon Healthcare Data Scientist I 12%H

Jason Bass Healthcare Data Scientist in 5% wm

Diego Caraballo Hcaltlicare Data Scientist II 5% H

Sydney Lewis Healtlicare Data Scientist II wm 51%H

Jennifer Chaney
Specialist Healthcare
Evaluation

3% H

Tonoka Batts
Specialist Healthcare
Evaluation

20% H

Lee Manns Outreach Specialist -M 12% ■
Kerri Brazzel Project Director ■ 4% ■
Nathan Ray Sr. VP Business Operations 2% H

Sheiyl Hurt Director, Outreach Services 0.1% ■

Michael Christly
Manager, lufonnatiou
Teclmology

0.2% ■

Jared Reid Assistant Director BI 0.5% ■
James Strickland IT Support 2.6% ■
Roua Bellinger Graphic Design 1.1% ■
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUM^ SERVICES
DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEAL TH

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03301
603-271 -9544 1 400-852-3345 Cxt 9544

Fax:603-271-4332 TDDAcau: 1-800-735^2964 www.dbhi.NewHampiMre.gov

August 6, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health,
on behalf of the Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other Drugs, to enter into a contract with
Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care. Inc. (VC#TBD). Little Rock. Arkansas in the amount of
$fl01.700 for the provision of program evaluation, and data collection, analysis, and repor1ir>g for
the Alcohol and Other Drug Continuum of Care services system in New Hampshire, with the
option to renew for up to two (2) additional years, effective upon Governor and Council approval
through June 30.2022.16.50% Federal Funds. 75% Other Funds (Governor Commission Funds),
and 8.50% State General Funds.

Funds are available In the following accounts for Slate Fiscal Year 2021, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2022, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between slate fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

OS-95-92-920510-33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND
ALCOHOL, GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Other Funds)

State Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92058502 $298,201

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92058502 $303,074

Subtotal $601,275

05-95-92-920510-33840000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND
ALCOHOL. CLINICAL SERVICES (66% Federal Funds 34% General Funds)

State Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057501 .  399,400

2022 102-500731 Coniracts for Prog Svc 92057501 $101,025

Subtoiol $200,425

Total $801,700

The Dtparlment of HeallA ond Hunton Services' Miuion is to join contmunilUt ondfamilia
in providing opportunities for citiitns to ochievt health and independence.
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Excellency. Governor Chrtetopher T. Suruinu
and il>e Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is for the provision of program evaluation and data collection,
analysis, and reporting for the Alcohol and Other Drug Continuum of Care services system In New
Hampshire.

New Hampshire continues to face significant challenges conceming substance misuse.
To address these challenges, the Department of Health and Human Services (Department)
continues rts commitment to building a coordinated system of care In New Hampshire. Evaluating
programs translating research and data to practice, and disseminating findings will help ensure
a consistent approach to improving outcomes for New Hampshire citizens and families who seek
services within the Alcohol and Other Di\rg Continuum of Care services system.

The goal of the senrlces is to improve the lives of New Hampshire citizens by helping
providers and the Department build quality substance misuse services through continual
evaluation of our system and programs and by collecting, analyzing, and reporting on data that
enables the Department to make evidence-informed decisions, vrtiile continuing to expand and
improve upon the system.

The Department will monitor contracted services through regularly scheduled meetings,
the submission and review of monthly reports and by using the following performance measures.

•  The Contractor responds to 100% of Department communications within 72 business
hours.

\

• The Contractor makes approved changes to work plans and timelines within five (5)
business days of receiving approval, 95% of the time.

•  The Contractor ensures 100% of work products match the approved methodology for
each work product.

•  The Contractor delivers 85% of work products within the agreed upon timeframes.

The Department selected the Contractor through a competitive bid process using a
Request for Proposals (RFP) that was posted on the Department's website from 5/20/2020
through 6/22/2020. The Department received four (4) responses that were reviewed and scored
by a team of qualified individuals. The Scoring Sheet is attached.

As referenced in Exhibit A. Revisions to Standard Contract Provisions. Section 1,
Revisions to Form P-37. General Provisions. Subsection 1.1 of the attached contract, the parties
have the option to extend the agreement for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon
satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and Governor and
Council approval.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request the State may be unable to
collectively address challenges and build capacity across the Alcohol and Other Drug Continuum
of Care service system in New Hampshire.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 16.50% Federal Funds..CFDA #93.959 FAIN #TI083041, 75% Other
Funds (Governor Commission Funds) and 8.50% State General Funds.
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Hor>orat^e C6una1

Pe0o3of3

In the event that the Federal or Other Funds become no longer available. Genera) Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

m, Lorj A. Shibinette
. Commissioner
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Business Operations

Contracts & Procurement Unit

for the Alcohol and Other Drug (AGO)

Services System
RFPName

Bidder Name

1.

2.

AFMC

JSI

^ Mountain Plains Evaluation

4.
NextStep

5.

6.

7.

RFP.2021<BDAS-01*PR06R

RFP Number Reviewer Names

Joseph Harding. Manager of
1. Substance Misuse Planning and

Evaluation

Pass/Fall

Maximum

Points

Actual

Points

275 265

275 153 .

275 175

276 28

275 0

275. 0

275 . .0

2.
Regina Flynn, Program Specialist
IV

> Shanrton Quinn, Program
' Spedalist IV

. Diana Lacey, Program Planning
' and Review Spedalist

Laurie Heath. Business Admin.Ml

6.

7.

8.

9.
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (vcnion 12/11/2019)

SubJecl:_PfOgram Evaluallon and Daia Services for the AOD Services Sysicm (RFP-202I-9DaS-01-PROCR*OI)

Noilce: This agretmeni and all of its anachmcnis shall become public upon submission to <luvernor and
Executive Council for approval. Any inrormallon that is private, conftdentiai or proprietary must
be clearly idcniified to the agerKy and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

agreement

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.1 State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department ofHeatch and Human Services

1.2 Stale Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street

Concord,Nil 0330I-3S57

1.3 Contractor Name

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, (nc.

1.4 Contractor Address

1020 West 4lh Street

Little Rock, AR 72201

1.3 Contractor Phone

Number

(501)212-8610

1.6 Account Number

05-095-092-920510-

3382; 05-095-092-
920510-3384

1.7 Completion Dale

June 30,2022

1.8 Price Limitation

$801,700

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency

Nathan D. White, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

(603)371-9631

1. M Cjirupcior Signaiurc^

D..c: 08/03/2020

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Ray Hanley, President and Chief Executive Ofltcer

1.13 Stole AgMcy Signature /\ 1.14 Name and Title ofSute Agency Signatory

1.15 Approval by the N'.H. Department of Administration, Division of PersonneTTr/opp/Zcob/a.)

By: Director, On;

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applleeble)

By: CaifLtAxwt. Pikaa- 03/10/20
1.17 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (ifapplicable)

G&C Item number: C&C Meeting Date:

Page 1 of4
Contractor Initials Rll^RDale 084)3/ 020
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2. SERVICES TO DE PERFORMED. The Siaic of New

Hampshire, acting through the agency idcmlHcd in block 1.1
("Stole"), engages contraclor identified in block 1.3
("Contractor") lo pcrforro, and ihc-Cohiractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTiVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council ofthe State of New Hampshire, ifopplicablc,
this Agreement, and all obligations ofthe parties hereundcr, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive

Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become cffcciivc on the date the Agreement is signed by
the Stale Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("EfTeciive Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effecitve Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, end in the event that this Agreement does not become
effective, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereundcr, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereundcr. arc
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds BfTecicd by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Scrv'ices provided in EXHIBIT D. in whole nr in
part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. Inthc
event of o reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The Slate shall not be required to transfer funds from ony other
occount or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the
event funds in that Account nre reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which Is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Coniraclor In the
performance hereof, and .shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contraclor other than the contract price.
5.3 The Slate reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contraclor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80;7-c or ony other provision oflaw.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding une.xpecled circumstances, in no
event shall the total ofall payments authorized, or actually made
hereundcr, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE RV CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In conneeiion with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of redcnil. state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duly upon the
(^ntractor. including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contraclor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
Slate or the United Slates issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agrtemcnt. the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age. sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will lake affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Conirucior's hooks, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its ovm expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor worrants ihoi
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7. the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whont it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Serv'ices to hire, any person who is a State employee
or ofTicial. who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement. This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9. or his or her
successor, shall be the Stale's representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's dec'ision shall be final for the State.

Page 2 or4
Contraclor Iniiials

Dale P8A)372020.
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8. EVENTOF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more cT ihc following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of.dcfault hereundcr ("Event
of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of lime, thiny (30) days from the
date ofthe notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days aficr giving the
Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines (hat the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifyirtg the Event of
Default and set off against any other.obligations the Slate may
owe to (he Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event ofDcfault; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contraciora written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat (he Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hcrcofoftcr
any Event ofDcfault shall be deemed a svaivcr of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent F.vcnt of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event ofDcfault shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any ftjnher or other Event of
Default on the pan of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8. the State may. at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in pan, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In Ihc event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting OITiccr. not later than fifteen (15) days after the dale
of termination, a rcpon ("Termination Report") describing in
detail alt Services pcrforrncd, and the contract price earned, lo
and including the dale oftermlnaiion. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those ofany Final Report described in the attached
F.XHIBIT B. In addition, at the Stale's discretion, the Contractor
shall,- within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and
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submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITV/

PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of. or acquired or developed by reason of, this
AgrecmenI, including, but not limited to. all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and docuntents, all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under (his Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the Slate upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Conridcntiality ofdata shall be governed by N.l l. RSA
chapter 91 -A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither.an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall hove authority to
bind (he State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the Slate to its employees.

12. ASSICNMENT/DELECATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
12.1 The Contractor .shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest tn this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least fifteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a wrincn consent of the Slate. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or scries of related transactions in
which 0 third^pony, together with its affiliates, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor.
12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior wrincn notice and consent of the Slate.
The Stale is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law.
the Contraetor shall indemnify and hold harmless ihc State, its
officers and employees, frum and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the State, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out oO Ihc acts or omissioj?)cCl the
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Contractor, or subcontractors, including but not limited to the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State sholl not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCK.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontructur or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance;
14.1.1 comniercial general liabiliiy insurance against nil claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than S 1.000,000 per occurrence and S2,000.000 aggregate
or c.xcess; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
l4.2The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the Slate
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the'State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The ConlracioT shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a ceniflcatc(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Omccr.identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certiricate(s) of insurance
for all renewal(5) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The certificate($) of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and arc incorporated herein by
reference,

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certilles
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("Workers'
Contpensotion ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the rcquircmenis
of N.H. KSA chapter 281-A. Contractor shall moiniain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this

- Agreemehl. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, orhi."! or her successor, proofof Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable rcncwal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The State
sholl not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' Compcnsolion laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
ofmailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United Stales
Post Orfice oddresscd to the panics at the addresses given in
blocks 1.3 and 1.4, herein.

17. amendment. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
parties hereto and only aAer approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State taw. rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit oflhc parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, arid no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict
between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement arc
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be-held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
Inierprciatlon. construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. Inihccvcntanyofthe provisionsofihis
Agreement arc held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any stale or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Program Evaluation and Data Services for the Alcohol and Other Drug
(ADD) Services System EXHIBIT A

REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT PROVISIONS

1. Revisions to Form P'37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3. Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to two (2) additional years
from the Complelion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and required
governmental approval.

1.2. Paragraph 12. Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed
and how corrective action shall be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is Inadequate. The Contractor shall manage the
subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis and take corrective
action as necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide the State with
a list of all subcontractors provided for under this Agreement and notify
the State of any inadequate subcontractor performance.

Arkansas FourxJatlon tor Medical Care. inc. Exhibii A Connector inUlels RH
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Program Evaluation and Data Services for the Alcohol and Other Drug

(ADD) Services System EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor shall ensure services are available Statewide.

1.2. The Contractor shall manage projects utilizing platforms that support detailed
project management and careful monitoring of timelines and notincation systems
including, but not limited to:

1.2.1. Salesforce®.

1.2.2. WorkZone®.

1.3. Program Evaluation

1.3.1. The Contractor shall provide evaluation support and services to the
Bureau's contracted prevention, early-intervention, treatment and recovery
supports programs, as directed by the Department and as required by
federal and state funding sources. Supports and services shall include, but
not be limited to:

1.3.1.1. Program evaluations to assess the performance of a program at
all stages of development from selection to implementation.

1.3.1.2. Process evaluations to ensure program fidelity by assessing
whether a program or process is implemented as designed or
operating as intended.

1.3.1.3. Outcome evaluations to examine the results,^ either intended or
unintended, of a program's delivery.

1.3.2. The Contractor shall develop and utilize methodologies and resources. In
collaboration with, and as approved by the Department, to assist in
evaluating programs.

1.3.3. The Contractor shall complete a process for an Independent Peer Review
(IPR) as required through the Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment
Block Grant (SABG).

1.3.4. The Contractor shall participate in federal evaluation webinars associated
with the Department's awarded federal grants, as identified by the
Department.

1.3.5. The Contractor shall develop evaluation documents and reports required for
State and federal grants, as requested by and In consultation with the
Department, including, but not limited to:

1.3.5.1. Demonstrated progress in meeting stated goals.

1.3.5.2. An explanation of challenges and successes that contributed
the outcomes.

A/Xansas Foundation for Medical Care. Inc. Exhibit B Contractor Initials RH ■
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Sen/ices
Program Evaluation and Data Services for the Alcohol and Other Drug

(ADD) Services System EXHIBIT 8

1.3.5.3. Identification of opportunities for improvement in evaluation
efforts.

1.4. Data Collection, Analysis, Interpretation, Reporting, and Support

1.4.1. The Contractor shall assist and support the Department in the collection,

analysis, interpretation, and reporting of data related to the Alcohol and
Other Drug (AOD) Continuum of Care (CoC) System for the purposes of
improving and informing substance misuse policies, programs, and
practices.

1.4.2. The Contractor shall ensure all client-level data disseminated is de-

identified and in aggregate format.

1.4.3. The Contractor shall ensure data collection, analysis, interpretation,
reporting and support activities include, but are not limited to;

1.4.3.1. Assigning lead and secondary analysts to the given task.

1.4.3.2. Identifying methodologies for data collection.

1.4.3.3. Working closely with the Department and federal partners to
ensure reporting responsibilities are clear.

1.4.3.4. Identifying reporting requirements for state and federal funding
sources.

1.4.3.5. Gathering and compiling relevant substance misuse information
and data.

1.4.3.6. Analyzing and translating data into a variety of formats by
utilizing:

1.4.3.6.1. Statistical significance testing.

1.4.3.6.2. SAS® for all data analyses.

1.4.3.6.3. Various statistical techniques including, but not limited
to:

1.4.3.6.3.1. Univahate descriptive statistics and means.

1.4.3.6.3.2. Repeated measure analyses, and

1.4.3.6.3.3. Multivariate statistical analyses.

1.4.3.7. . Facilitating the collection and reporting of data including, but not
limited to, creating a data profile with regards to a subset of the
larger population who are at greater risk of developing a
substance use disorder (SLID) or, by proximity, are at a greater
risk of the consequences of individuals with a SLID.

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care. Inc. Exhibit B Contractor Initials RH
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Program Evaluation and Data Services for the Alcohol and Other Drug

(ADD) Services System EXHIBIT B

1.4.3.8. Integrating quality data assessment procedures into regular data
management practices including, but not limited to independent
analysis of the regular data management practices.

1.4.3.9. Developing and providing a comprehensive summary report that
provides clear interpretations of the sun/ey findings which
includes, but.is not limited to;

1.4.3.9.1. A summary report of aggregate, de-identified client-
level data. , •

1.4.3.9.2. Narrative responses and graphical illustrations, and
preparing documents as determined and requested by
the Department.

1.4.3.10. Providing technical assistance in areas related to data collection
and reporting as needed.

1.4.4. The Contractor shall design, publish, and provide data reports in user-
friendly and accessible formats that visually represent findings, as directed
by the Department including, but not limited to:

1.4.4.1. Data summaries.

1.4.4.2. Profiles.

1.4.4.3. Dashboards.

1.4,4.4. Charts.

1.4.4.5. Graphs.

1.4.4.6. Tables.

1.4.5. The Contractor shall utilize agile software, systems, and tools approved by
the Department to analyze quantitative and qualitative data including, but
not limited to:

1.4.5.1. REDCap^" for data collection

1.4.5.2. SAS® for all data analyses.

1.4.6. The Contractor shall ensure privacy by using established rules and
requirements controlling and safeguarding. data and its access,
transmission, receipt, storage, maintenance, and use.

1.5. NH Youth Risk Behavior Survey

1.5.1. The Contractor shall provide administrative assistance to the Department
for the implementation of the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention
(CDC) NH Youth Risk Behavior Survey (YRBS). which includes, but is not
limited to:

ArXansas Foundation for Medical Care, inc. Exhibit 8 Contractor initials RM

RFP-2021-BOAS-Ot-PROGR-O1 Page 3 of 8 Date 0X/Q3/702Q



OocuSign Envelope 10:197C19B1-2BBD-4E35-960F-8ADF3D01806F

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Program Evaluation and Data Services for the Alcohol and Other Drug

(AOD) Services System EXHIBIT B

1.5.1.1. Assisting the Department with creating the survey including, but
not limited to:

1.5.1.1.1. Providing input in survey question selection, as
requested by the Department;

1.5.1.1.2. Validating questionnaire and answer options;

1.6.1.1.3. Formatting survey in compliance with printer
requirements; and

1.5.1.1.4. Ensuring the final document is press-ready PDF.

1.5.1.2. Printing, delivering and distributing approximately 45,000 paper-
based surveys to more than 80 participating public high schools
statewide, formatted in accordance with the requirements of the
CDC and the Department, in booklet form;

1.5.1.3. Collecting and scanning completed sun/eys in a confidential and
secure manner as approved by the Department;

1.5.1.4. Developing a clean dataset of coded results utilizing coding rules
approved by the Department;

1.5.1.5. Providing a codebook for the clean dataset.

1.5.1.6. Providing the data to the Department in a clean data file in ASCII
format ensuring that any protected health information (PHI) or
SUD data included in the reports is disclosed in accordance with
state rules, state and federal laws, including the requirements of
42CFR Part 2; and

1.5.1.7. Providing consultation and information regarding the clean data
format and results.

1.5.2. The Contractor shall provide YRBS evaluation interpretation and translation
of raw data into a useable report for school level and/or regional level
reports for the Department and its providers, as requested.

1.6. Initial Planning

1.6.1. The Contractor shall conduct a virtual project,kick-off meeting with the
Department and identified project staff within 20 business days of the
contract effective date to review proposed project deliverables for all scope
outline in Section 1, Scope of Work.

1.6.2. The Contractor shall provide an initial work plan and timeline to the
Department that defines the goals, objectives, activities, deliverables, and
due dates for each scope of work to the Department for approval. The
Contractor shall:

1.6.2.1. Provide the initial work plan to the Department no later thanjl[o
days after the kick-off meeting.

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care. Inc. Exhibits Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Program Evaluation and Data Services for the Alcohol and Other Drug
(AGO) Services System EXHIBIT 8

1.6.2.2. Ensure changes to work plans or timelines receive Department
approval prior to implementation.

1.6.3. The Contractor shall create and deliver a Health Disparities Impact
Statement to the Department within 10 days of the kick-off meeting that
aligns with the project work plan in order to measure the reduction in health
disparities, determine effectiveness across programs, in order that future
reviews can be measured against the Health Disparities Impact Statement.
The Contractor shall ensure health disparities assessed and measured
include, but are not limited to;

1.6.3.1. Client access to care.

1.6.3.2. Utilization.

1.6.3.3. Outcomes across individuals by:

1.6.3.3.1. Race.

1.6.3.3.2. Gender.

1.6.3.3.3. Age.

1.6.4. The Contractor shall contact each program to be evaluated, at the direction
of Department, in order to:

1.6.4.1. . Discuss the evaluation protocol;

1.6.4.2. Identify any special circumstances or process adjustments
needed; and

1.6.4.3. Schedule training on REDCapTM and the data collection tools.

1.6.5. The Contractor shall develop and submit the Data Collection and
Management plan, data collection templates, project reporting templates,
and YRBS project plan for the Department's review and approval within the
first 30 days of the contract.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits D through K, which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Reporting Requirements

3.1. The Contractor shall provide written methodologies for proposed activities to the
Department, when appropriate and when requested, for approval prior to
implementing such activities.

3.2. The Contractor shall conduct and complete an IPR of not fewer than five (5%)
percent of the entities contracted with the State to provide SUD treatment
services, per state fiscal year, which is from July 1-June 30, as required througj
the SABG. This includes, but Is not limited to:

AfXansas Four>datk)n for Medical Care. Inc. Exhibit B Cont/actor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Program Evaluation and Data Services for the Alcohol and Other Drug
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3.2.1. Submitting a summary report to the Department including, but not limited to
results and findings related to the IPR within 30 calendar days following
completion of the review.

3.2.2. Submitting all final documents related to the IPR to the Department prior to
June 30th of each state fiscal year.

3.3. The Contractor shall provide a written monthly progress report to the Department
related to accomplishments of the contract goals and performance measures, for
each scope of work, which includes, but is not limited to;

3.3.1. A summary of the key work performed for each scope of work during the
monthly period.

3.3.2. Encountered and foreseeable key issues and suggested mitigations
strategies for each.

3.3.3. Scheduled work for the upcoming period.

3.4. The Contractor shall complete and submit an end of year report no later than 60-
calendar days after the end of each state fiscal year, which includes, but is not
limited to:

3.4.1. A complete program overview.

3.4.2. Accomplishments towards program goals and performance measures
linked to outcomes for each scope of work.

3.4.3. End-of-year financial report.

4. Performance Measures

4.1. The Department will monitor Contractor performance by requiring that:

4.1.1. The Contractor responds to 100% of Department communications within 72
business hours.

4.1.2. The Contractor makes approved changes to work plans and timelines within
five (5) business days of receiving approval. 95% of the time.

4.1.3. The Contractor ensures 100% of work products match the approved
methodology for each work product.

4.1.4. The Contractor delivers 85% of work products within the agreed upon
timeframes.

4.2. The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to
enhance contract management, improve results, and adjust program delivery
and policy based on successful outcomes.

4.3. The Contractor may be required to provide other key data and metrics to the
Department, including client-level demographic, performance, and service dat
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Program Evaluation and Data Services for the Alcohol and Other Drug

(AGO) Services System EXHIBIT 8

4.4. Where applicable, the Contractor shall collect and share data with the
Department in a format specified by the Department.

5. Additional Terms

5.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

5.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal legislation
or court orders may have an impact on the Services described herein, the
Stale has the right to modify Service priorities and expenditure requirements
under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

5.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services

5.2.1. The Contractor shall submit, within ten (10) days of the contract effective
date, a detailed description of the communication access and language
assistance services they will provide to ensure meaningful access to their
programs and/or services to persons with limited English proficiency,
people who are deaf or have hearing loss, are blind or have low vision, or
who have speech challenges.

5.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

5.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and, other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the services
of the Contract shall include the following statement, "The preparation of
this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State of
New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds
provided in part by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding
sources as were available or required, e.g., the United States Department
of Health and Human Services."

5.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the contract shall have prior
approval from the Department before printing, production, distribution or

i  use.
I

5.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all original
materials produced, including, but not lirhited to:

5.3.3.1. Brochures.

5.3.3.2. Resource directories.

1  5.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

5.3.3.4. Posters.

5.3.3.5. Reports.

5.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under th
contract without prior written approval from the Department.

Ari^ansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc. Exhibit B Contractorlnitiaia ^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Program Evaluation and Data Services for the Alcohol and Other Drug
(ADD) Services System EXHIBIT B

6. Records

6.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to:

6.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data evidencing
and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the Contractor In the
performance of the Contract, and all income received or collected by the
Contractor.

6.1.2. All records must l>e maintained in accordance with accounting procedures
and practices, which sufficiently and property reflect all such costs and
expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and to include.

■  without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs
such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for
materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards,
payrolls, and other records requested or required by the Department.

6.2. During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder. the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit, examination,
excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department of the maximum
number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price
limitation hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder
(except such obligations as. by the terms of the Contract are to be performed
after the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive the termination of the
Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the Final
Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the
Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its
discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are disallowed or to
recover such sums from the Contractor.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Program Evaluation and Data Services for the Alcohol and Other Drug
(ADD) Services System EXHIBIT C

PavmentTerms

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 16.5% Substance Abuse Prevention & Treatment Block Grant

{SAPTBG). as awarded on 10/1/2019. by the Department of Health and
Human Services. Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration (SAMHSA), Center for Substance Abuse Treatment.
CFDA 93.959. FAIN TI083041.

1.2. 75% Other Funds (Governor's Commission on Alchohol and Other
Drugs).

1.3. 8.5% General Funds.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement the Department has identified the
Contractor as a Contractor, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.330.

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with
the approved line item, as specified in Exhibit C-1 Budget SFY 2021 and Exhibit
C-2 Budgets SFY 2022.

4. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the
twentieth (20th) working day of the following month, unless otherwise specified,
which identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred
in the prior month. The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, dated
and returned to the Department in order to initiate payment. Invoices shall be
net any other revenue received towards the services billed in fulfillment of this
agreement.

4.1. Backup documentation shall include, but is not limited to:

4.1.1. , General Ledger showing, revenue and expenses for the contract.

4.1.2. Timesheets and/or timecards signed by both employee and
supervisor that support the hours employees worked for wages
reported under this contract.

4.1.2.1. Per 45 CFR Part 75.430(i)(1) Charges to Federal awards
for salaries and wages must be based on records that
accurately reflect the work performed.

4.1.3. Per 2 CFR 200.430 (iii) Labor records must reasonably reflect the
total activity for which each employee is compensated, showing
percentages for time spent on activities under this contract and
all other activities (totaling no more than 100%).

AtVansas Foundation for Medical Care. Inc. Exhrtjit C Contractor initlBls
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Program Evaluation and Data Services for the Alcohol and Other Drug
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4.2. The following backup documentation may also be requested as
needed:

4.2.1. invoices supporting expenses reported.

4.2.2. Cost center reports, submitted only as requested by the
Department.

4.2.3. Profit and loss report, submitted only as requested by the
Department.

5. in lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and
emailed to l'nvoicesforcontracts@dhhs.nh.aov. or invoices may be mailed to:

Contract ManagerforRFP-2021-BDAS-01-PROGR
Department of Health and Human Services
Bureau of Drug & Alcohol Services
105 Pleasant Street, Main Bldg., 3'*^ Floor North
Concord. NH 03301

6. the State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt
of each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if
sufficient funds are available, subject to Paragraph 4 of the General Provisions
Form Number P-37 of this Agreement.

7. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the
contract completion date specified in Form P-37. General Provisions Block 1.7
Completion Date.

8. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit B. Scope of Services, in
compliance with funding requirements.

9. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in
whole or in part in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions
of Exhibit B. Scope of Sen/ices.

10. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that
funding under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event
of non-compliance with any Federal or State law. rule or regulation applicable
to the services provided, or if the said services or products have not been
satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
agreement.

11. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified. ̂

Ackansaa Foundation for Medical Care, inc. E)diibii C Conifsciof initWi

RFP-2021-BOAS-01-PROGR-01 Page 2 o( 3 Qaie 08/03/2020
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Program Evaluation and Data Services for the Alcohol and Other Drug
(ADD) Services System EXHIBIT C

12. Audits

12.1. The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department
if any of the following conditions exist:

12.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

12.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor Is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28. Ill-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

12.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit.

12.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit
performed by an Independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the
Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal
year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part
200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost.
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

12.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

12.4. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Contract, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit'exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has t>een taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

Arkansas Foundation for Medicdl Coro. Inc. EidiibilC Cont/actof iniHaia RH
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Exhibit Crl

Budget SFY 2021

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder Name: Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Budget Request for: Progam Evaluation and Data Services for the Alcohol and Other Drug (AGO) Services System

Budget Period: SFY 2021

- - ■/Total Pf^ram,Cost;' V' Cbntractof'Share./.Matcfi" ^.F^unded^y.-DHHSxdn.tract share.

Llne.ltern r Direct. _• Indirect - ■ '.Total Vr, .',.blr€.ct .l^lrecjl."J.TpjaL" Direct' I "Indirectj.
1. Total Salary/Wages S 176.763 S 50.784 5 227.547 5  - $  - $  - S 176.763 $50,784 S 227.547

2. Employee Benefits $ 84.175 s 24.183 $ 108,358 S $  - s  - 5 84.175 5 24.183 S 108.358

3. Consultants $ $ $ S $  - $  - S $ $

A. Equipment; s s $ S  - $  - $  - $ s s

Rental s $ $ $ s  - s  - S 5 $

Repair and Maintenance s $ S 5 $  - 5  - S S s

Purchase/Depreciation s 5 $ $ s  - $  - 5 $ s

5. Supplies: $ S . $ . S s  - I  - S - $ s

Office s 543 5 156 S 699 S s  - s  - s 543 5 156 s 699

6. Travel s 5.703 S 1.638 S 7.341 $ s  - 5  - 5 5,703 S 1.638 s 7.341

7. Occupancy s 10.396 5 2.987 S 13.383 S s  - S  - S 10.396 S 2.987 $ 13.383

6. Current Expenses $ $ $ S s  - 5  - s • $ s

Telephone s 4.528 $ 1,301 S 5.829 S s  - $  - $  4.528 S 1.301 $ 5.829

Postage s 2.838 $ 815 S 3,653 $ $  - 5  - 5  2.838 $ 815 $ 3,653

Subscriptions $ $ $ S s  - S  - 5 s s

Audit and Legal $ 5 s S s  - s  - $ $ 5

Insurance % $ $ s $  - s  - $ $ $

Board Expenses $  - . S - s - $ $  - s  - S s s

9. Software s 13,598 S 3,907 s 17.505 s s  - $  - S  13.598 $ 3,907 s 17.505

10. MarketinqyCommunications s 10.321 $ 2.965 s . 13.286 s  - s  - s  - 5  10,321 $ 2.965 s 13,286

11. Staff Education and Training $ $ s s $  - s  ■ $ $ $

12. Subcontracts/Aqreements $ $ 5 s  - $  - s  - 5 $ $

13. Other (specific details mandator s $ $ s  - s  - s  - S $ 5 -

TOTAL $ 308,865 $ 88,736 $ 397.601 s 5  - $ 308,865 $ 88,736 S 397,601

Indirect As A Percent of Direct

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care. Inc.

RFP-2021-BDA5-01-PROGR-01

Exhibit C-1

Page 1 of 1

28.73%
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Exhibit C-2

Budget SPY 2022

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Bidder Name: Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, inc.

Budget Request for: Progam Evaluation and Data Services for the Alcohol and Other Drug (AOD) Services System
Budget PeHod: SFY 2022

Total Program'G'ost." - Contractor, Share./ Match;^ - Eun*de*dJ>y DHHS:contra.ct^s^

Line Item: ... J ^ ^Direct. T ~ vlndlfe'cl '
—■ ^.To'taV. '7. Direct 'Incflrect.V ■•'•Tpta^l':. .. ^'Dir^'t; - "v Indirect .• .;T0tel-V. J

1. Total SalaryAiVagcs S 181.186 S 52.055 S 233.243 $- S 5  - $  181.188 $ 52,055 S 233.243

2. Employee Benefits S 86,282 S 24,789 $ 111.071 %- $ $  - S  86,282 $ 24,789 $ 111.071

3. Consultants s $ $ $- $ 5  - $ S S

4. Equipment: s $ $ $- s $  - $ s s

5. Supplies: s $ $ S- $ S  - S . s - s •

Office $ 562 s 161 S 723 S- $ 5  - S  562 s 161 S  723

6. Travel s 2.750 $ 790 s 3.540 s- $ S  - $  2.750 s 790 S 3.540

7. Occupancy s 10.758 s 3.091 % 13.849 $- s 5  - $  10.758 s 3.091 s 13.849

8 Current Expenses s $ s - s- s S  - $ % - s -

Telephone s 4.685 s 1,346 s 6.031 $- s S  - %  4.685 $ 1.346 $ 6,031

Postage s 2.937 s 844 S 3.781 $- s S  - S  2,937 5 844 s 3,781

$ $ $ s- s S  - s $ s

Audit and Legal $ s s $- s $  - $ S s

s $ $ s- s $  - $ S s

Board Expenses $ $ I s- s S  - s $ - $ -

9. Software s 14.071 % 4,043 s 18.114 $- s S  - 5  14.071 S 4.043 5 18.114

10 Marketing/Communicatior s 10.679 $ 3.068 $ 13.747 s- s S  - 5  10.679 s 3,068 S  13./4r

11 Staff Education and Train s $ 5 5- s s  - $ $ $

12 Suljconlracts/Agreements s s $ S- s $  - $ s S

13. Other (specific details ma s s S - $- s $  - $ $ - s -

TOTAL s 313,912 % 90,187 404.099 s- s $  - $  313,912 $ 90,187 404,099

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 28.73%

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.
RFP-2021-BDAS-01-PR06R-01

Exhibit C-2

Page 1 of 1
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New Hampshire Oeparlment of Health and Human Services
Exhibit 6

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Cer^fication:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS .

US DEPARTft^ENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certificalion is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workpface Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V. Subtitle D;41 U.S.C. 701 el seq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certificalion by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors). prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such,
prohibition:

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of (he statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required t?y paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receivir>g notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or othenMse receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice. Including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant actMly the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal egeocy

ExhlbilD-CertiricstionregardingOrusFree Vendor Inillals.
Workplace Requiremenla MMtnf

cuoHMsn»o»ii Page i of 2 Dale OS/03/Zi
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit 0

has designated a central p>oinl for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identirication number(s) of each affected grant;

.1 .B. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under •
subparegraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Takif\g appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal. State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency:

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
Implementation of paragraphs 1.1. 1.2,1.3, 1.4. 1.5, and 1:6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, stale, zip code) (list each location)

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care. Inc.

1020 West 4ih Street, Lililc Rock, AR 72201

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Vendor Name; Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care. Inc.

08/03/2020

Dale Name; Ray Hawiy
Title: Prcsidcni and CEO

abExNtx't 0 - Certification regardir^g Drug Free Vendor Initials
WorltpiBCe Requirements .

cu®M«s/nori3 Page 2 of 2 Date. 03^03/2020
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1 <3 of the Genera) Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of PuWic Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, Br>d further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the Generai Provisions execute the following Certification;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title iV-A
'Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicaid Program under Title XIX
•Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certines. to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agerKy, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by spectfic mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by spedfic mention sub-grantee or sut>-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, In accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracls. sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-redpients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, TllJe 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penally of not less than SlO.OOO and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name: Arkansas Foimdaiion for Medical Care, Inc.

08/03/2020

Dale Name; Ray Hani
Title: President and CEO

ExhiWt E > CertificsKon Regarding Lobbying Vendor Initiais

cuCHHS/110713 Page 1 of i Date 011/01/2020



DocuSign Envelope ID: 197C19B1-208D-4E35.96OF-8ADF3DO1BO6F

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply vwlh the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment.
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 oMhe General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION '

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant Is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result In denial
of participation In this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered In connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (OHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter Into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government. DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide Immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction." "debarred.' "suspended," "ineligible." "lower tier covered
transaction." "participant," "person." "primary covered transaction," 'principal,' "proposal," and
•voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out In the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who Is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will Include the
clause tilled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Vduntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS. without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may. but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of reco,
in order to render in good faith the certiricaticn required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibit F - Ceililicalion Rcgofding Oebarmeni. Suspension Vendor Iniilals
And Olher Responsibility Matters rffl/mvinsn
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

to. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant In a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its Knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarmenl, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

11.2. have nol within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, Stale or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are nol presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, Stale or focal) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

.  11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal. Stale or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. 8y signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined In 45 CFR Part 76. certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that H and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarmenl, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarmenl. Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,' without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Vendor Name: Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

08/03/2020
Date Name: Kay

Title: President on CEO

Exhibit F - Cenincatlon Resarding Oebarment. Suspension Vendor tnitists
And Other Rcsponslt>ili{y Ma'tiert
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CeRTIPICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH»BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute (he following
cenificatioin:

Vendor will.comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may Include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section S672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this.
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- (he Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons vyith disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1581.1683,1685-86). which prohibits
discrimination on Ihe basis of sex In federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does riot include
employment discrimination:

• 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of (he laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

• 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2. 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

ExhiOllG
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or Slate administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of furxfs. the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, end
to the Department of Health and Human Senrices Office of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 end 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Vendor agrees to comply with the provisions
Indicated above.

Vendor Name: Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

08/03/2020

Date Name: Ra)
Title: President and CEO
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

PuWic Law 103-227. Part C • Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 10, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the Imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified In Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.'

I

Vendor NameiArkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

08/03/2020

Dale Name: Ray Hanley
Title: President and CEO

Exhibit H - Cenincallon Regarding Vendor Initials
Environmental Tobacco Smoke
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY

ACT BUSINESS ASSOCIATE

AGREEMENT

The Vendor identlHed in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information. 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Vendor and subcontractors and agents of the Vendor that receive,
use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement 'and "Covered Entity"
shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1 Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entity' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations. «

d. 'Deslonated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. 'Data AoareQalion' shall have the same meaning as the term 'data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act' means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIII, Subtitle 0, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of.
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information,.45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

]. 'Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by. the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. 'Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected heajt
information' in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 ExMbltl Vendor Initials.
Health Insurance PortabllitY Act
Business Assodsie Aoreemeni ^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

I. "Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretafv" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. 'Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164. Subpart C. and amendments thereto.

0. 'Unsecured Protected Health thformation" means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and Is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a.- Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
Its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. ■ For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law. pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III.. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHt to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach Nolification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law. without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the dlsclosui^p^
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Busii

3/20U exhiblM vendor iniuols
Heallh Insurance PortabDity Ad
Business Assodato Agreement
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) .ObiiQatlons and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health Information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an Impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when It becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

0 The nature and extent of the protected health Information Involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health Information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 5 business
day of the breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in
writing to the Covered Entity. ' '

c. The Business Associa'te shall comply with all sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PH| received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HlPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, inciudirig
the duly to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity^
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business 8SS(^
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receivinj

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor inlilals
Health Insurance Poftablliiy Act
BuainessAasocJate Aoreemcnt
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New HampsHire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit!

-  - pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a writlen request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 154.52^.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set. the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

I. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528:

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to Iho^
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible. for so long as Business^

3/2014 Ezhlbiil Vendor Inltiali
Health Insurance PortabHIly Act
eusiness Astodate Agroemeni
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit!

-  - Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Oblloatlons of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520. to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination Tor Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms apd conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) MIscetlanoous

a. Definitions and Reoulatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from lime to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I. to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from lime to time as Is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes In the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that It has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parlies agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be re
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.

3/2014 Exhibit I Vendor Initials
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Exhibit I

SeoreQation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit i or the application thereof to any
person(8) or circumstance is held Invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit 1 are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I. the
defense and indemniricatlon provisions of section (3) e end Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shati survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parlies hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Oepartmerrt of Health and Human Services Arkansas Foundation ofMedical Care, Inc.

The Stale of th Ven

Signature of Authorized Representative

Name^oOAuthorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

Date '

Signafurew Authorized F^resenlal'ive

Rav Hanlev
Name of Authorized Representative

President and CEO
Title of Authorized Representative

08/05/2020
Date

3/2014 ExMbin
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CERTIPICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABIUTY AND TRANSPARENCY

ACT tFFATAI COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than S25,000 and awarded on or after October 1. 20t 0. to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 bul subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000. the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award sul^ect to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAtCS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS U)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 60% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensaboh information Is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days. In v^ich
the sward or award amendment Is made.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the Ceneral Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Vendor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH Department
of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial
Accountability and Transparency Act.

Vendor Name: Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

08/03/2020

Date Nam(

Title: Presidcni and CEO

nicyRd

REidiibil J - Certification Retjanling the Federal Funding Vendor Initials.
AccounlabQlty And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

FORMA

As ihe Vendor identified in Section .1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify thai the responses to the
below listed questions ere true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for vour entity is: 010330983 •

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts. sutKontracts. loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO •YES

If the answer to above Is NO. stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following;

3. Does the public have access ta information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1988?

NO YES

If Ihe answer to #3 above is YES. stop here

If the answer to HZ above is NO. please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers In your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name;

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CUO««rn07i3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Humar) Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document;

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident' in section two (2) of NIST Publication 600-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information' or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance [benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records. Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by .
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services • of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to ,
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI). Federal Tax InformaUon (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data In accordance with the terms of this Contract.

I

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Inddents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronij

vs. Last update tO/OSns ExhibiiK Contractor Intiials.
OHHS Intormation

Security Requirements
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New Hampshire Department of Healtti and Human Services

Exhibit K

OHMS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open V\^reless Network" means any network or segment of a network that Is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, srKl
approved, by means-of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI.
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI*) means Information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or Identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name. etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164. promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart 0. and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to la

vs. Last update 10/09/15 ExhI&il K Contractor inliials
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Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying OHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that OHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must hot disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption, If End User Is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrvoted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is ernploying the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Sen/lces. also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Drcpbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User Is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. VVireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this'
Contract. After such lime, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must;

A, Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the sen/ices rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events thai can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section iy.'A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker. anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-matware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive Ir^trusion-detecticn and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use. electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NISI Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization. National Institute of Standards and Technology, tj. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the Slate and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of. the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding. .

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

fV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor wilt maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle. where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use. storage and -secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for Its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for Stale of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines • specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to securlty'requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirerrienls.

7. The Contractor will work v/ith the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

6. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey Is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes In risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will t>e completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

.11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations, regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a). DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations {45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the conndentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement Information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security Incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor' must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users v/ho need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection vwth purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or Inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices'/media containing PHI. PI. or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Connder^tial Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as v/ell as norvduty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric Identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when In transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. In all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or Indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor Is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract,

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the Slate's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agenc/s documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents:

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidenls as required in this Exhibit or P-37;
4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents

and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine wt^ether Breach notification is required, and, if so. identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, In accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. OHMS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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